

CAMBRIDGE LICENSE COMMISSION HEARING  
CITY OF CAMBRIDGE

IN RE: LICENSE COMMISSION HEARING

LICENSE COMMISSION BOARD MEMBERS:

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER

FIRE CHIEF GERALD REARDON

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE

STAFF: EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT

---

AT: Cambridge Senior Center  
806 Massachusetts Avenue  
Cambridge, Massachusetts 02139

DATE: September 28, 2016

TIME: 4:00 p.m.

---

REPORTERS, INC.  
CAPTURING THE OFFICIAL RECORD  
617.786.7783 - [www.reportersinc.com](http://www.reportersinc.com)

INDEX OF AGENDA	
<u>AGENDA MATTERS</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
APPLICATION: PARKINGWAY WINES, INC D/B/A SUPREME LIQUORS	6
APPLICATION: TURNIP, LLC D/B/A PARSNIP	9
APPLICATION: BARAKA, INC D/B/A BARAKA CAFE	15
APPLICATION: SAM WILLIAMS D/B/A THE BACON TRUCK	18
APPLICATION: MARIANNA EXPERIENCED CLOTHING, LLC D/B/A OONA'S EXPERIENCED CLOTHING	21
HACKNEY APPEAL: BHUPINDER KAINTH	25

INDEX OF AGENDA	
<u>AGENDA MATTERS</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
 <b><u>ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS</u></b>	
CHRIS KOSINSKI	39
SEZ, INC	39
NIGHT MARKET	40
PRESIDENT AND FELLOWS OF HARVARD COLLEGE	40
BUILDING FORM, LLC	42
CAMBRIDGE BOY SCOUTS	42
CRYSTAL GEORGE	43
MARC SHULMAN	43
DAN GRIFFIN	44
CHARLES MARQUARDT	45
FAWAZ ABU RUBIEH	46
JEFF MacLEAN	48
COMMERCE BANK & TRUST COMPANY	49

## INDEX OF AGENDA

<u>AGENDA MATTERS</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
<u>MALT &amp; WINE LICENSES WITH OR WITHOUT ENTERTAINMENT</u>	
CAROLYN COYLE	50
EDWARD O'CONNOR	50
BEN PERTLER	51/66/67
QUANTUM WEI	51
PAUL PARRAVANO	52
ELIAS TUOMAALA	52
ASHLEY SLIDER	53
GABRIEL DELSIGNORE	54
HELENE RIEU-ISAACS	55
KAILEY WALSH	55/63/64
BILL MANLEY	57
ENA VALENZUELA	58
PEACE MODUBVONWU	58/59
PRIYANKA KUMAR	60
KYANN ANDERSON	61
MARK LINGA	61
KRIS PRICE	62
ZACH WEATHERFORD	65

## INDEX OF AGENDA

<u>AGENDA MATTERS</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
ZECCO SUBLET	67
CHRIS MARTIN	67
AFASADA TULAGADABA (phonetic)	68
REBECCA LAY	68
HEATH SCHUBERT	69
RJ HOLLY	70
MOHAMMED ALIBACKI	70

P R O C E E D I N G S

September 28, 2016, 4:00 p.m.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: If anybody has a cell phone on, we would appreciate it if you turned it off before we get started.

The meeting is being audiotaped and videotaped.

It's the Cambridge License Commission agenda for Wednesday, September 28, 2016 at 4:00 p.m. We're in the Cambridge Senior Center, 806 Massachusetts Avenue.

Before you are the Commissioners: Chair Nicole Murati Ferrer and Commissioner Christopher Burke.

The first matter has been continued.

APPLICATION:

PARKINGWAY WINES, INC

D/B/A SUPREME LIQUORS

Application: Parkingway Wines, Inc doing business as Supreme Liquors, holder of an all alcoholic beverages package store license at 600 Massachusetts Avenue has applied for a change of hours from 9:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. Monday through Saturday and 12:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m. Sunday to 8:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. Monday through Saturday and 10:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. on Sunday.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Good afternoon. Could you please state and spell your names for the record?

TOM CIFRANO: My name is Tom Cifrino, C-I-F-R-I-N-O.

STEVEN WILKINSON: My name is Steve Wilkinson, W-I-L-K-I-N-S-O-N.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Can you tell us what the need for the change in hours?

TOM CIFRINO: It's more change on Sundays

than Monday through Friday, Monday through Saturday. The license says we can open up on Monday through Saturday at 8:00 a.m. anyway.

The reason way the change is because we open at noon now, and especially during the football season, we have 30 people waiting outside to get stuff for football games. And it's more to give better customer service.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: And I note for the record that under the law you needed to give us notice that you wanted to change, but that the law changed and allows you to open at 10:00 a.m. on Sundays.

TOM CIFRINO: Exactly.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:  
None.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Anyone in favor of this petition?

(No response.)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Anyone in opposition to this petition?

(No response.)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: I vote to grant.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE: Approve.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

APPLICATION: TURNIP, LLC

D/B/A PARSNIP

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Application: Turnip, LLC doing business as Parsnip, holder of a common victualler all alcoholic beverages license at 91 Winthrop Street has applied for a change of manager to Ivan Law.

ATTY ANTHONY GALLUCCIO: Good afternoon, Madam Chair, Commissioner Burke. I'm here with the proposed manager. As you may --

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: For the record, can you please state your name?

ATTY ANTHONY GALLUCCIO: I'm sorry.

It's been awhile. Anthony Galluccio. I'm a partner with Galluccio and Watson, G-A-L-L-U-C-C-I-O, 1498 Cambridge Street in Cambridge.

Just as a matter of housekeeping, I believe you were looking for a copy -- I have a copy of proof of citizenship, which is a copy of Ivan's passport. And through you, Madam Chair, I also have additional copies of Ivan's CV. If you need that, I'll give you those.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: I believe you attached that. We have that.

ATTY ANTHONY GALLUCCIO: And just for point of recollection, we were here back in February with Kevin Murphy. The local Commission approved Kevin's managerial application to take

over for Jerry Tracy (phonetic) and he passed away three or four weeks after that.

So we've -- we're here to propose Ivan Law as the manager for Parsnip, and if the Chair would indulge and maybe ask Ivan to say a few words about his previous history managing, not managing alcohol licenses, but in the restaurant field.

IVAN LAW: Most recently in Cambridge I was general manager of Rialto. I did not manage -- I was not the record holder of the liquor license of the hotel. I worked in Cambridge and Harvard Square for over ten years. Prior to that, I was the general manager of Harvest in Cambridge and now after Kevin Murphy's passing, have now taken over as general manager of Parsnip.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Thank you.

Are you familiar with the rules and

regulations of this Board, the ABCC and the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts with regard to the sale and service of alcohol?

IVAN LAW: Yes. I am also aware from Attorney Galluccio to take the ServSafe alcohol which I plan to take in the next month or so.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: And the 21 Proof?

IVAN LAW: Yes.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Do you understand that we expect you to stay up to date with the rules and regulations of this Board and the ABCC and the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts with regard to the sale and service of alcohol?

IVAN LAW: Yes, I do.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER:  
Mr. Galluccio, have you submitted this on-line yet?

ATTY ANTHONY GALLUCCIO: Yes.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: And you attached the documents and everything?

ATTY ANTHONY GALLUCCIO: Yes.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: I only ask you because we have not been able to open the que yet. I got a call from the ABCC 30 minutes ago saying that they were going to fix that, but, hopefully, I'll be able to see that, but I just wanted to confirm that it's all --

ATTY ANTHONY GALLUCCIO: My attorney in my office confirmed repeatedly that we have done all we can on our end.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Well, hopefully, we'll be able to see it by tomorrow.

ATTY ANTHONY GALLUCCIO: I have withdrawn Kevin Murphy's application to ABCC as well.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Did you withdraw that by letter or --

ATTORNEY GALLUCCIO: Email which was requested of me by the investigator. I can forward you a copy of that email.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Yes. Can you please forward that to me because it will be kicked back to me at some point so we can have it and we can just submit that. We can attach it with the Form 43 with this.

ATTY ANTHONY GALLUCCIO: I think this investigator is on top of it. I'll give you the copy of the email in response to his inquiry.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Thank you.

Anything else?

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:

None.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Anyone in favor of this petition?

(No response.)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Anyone in

opposition to this petition?

(No response.)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Vote to  
approve.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:  
Approved.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

ATTY ANTHONY GALLUCCIO: Thank you.

Good afternoon.

APPLICATION: BARAKA, INC

D/B/A BARAKA CAFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Application: Baraka, Inc doing business as  
Baraka Café, has applied for a new common  
victualler license to be exercised at 1728  
Massachusetts Avenue, to be open seven days per  
week between 10:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. with a  
seating capacity of 40 inside, Alia Radjeb,

proposed manager of record. Premise is described as: Ground floor retail space in a one-story brick building, including 40 seats, bathrooms, sink, and kitchen, below grade prep spaces and walk-in cooler.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Good afternoon. Please state and spell your name for the record.

ALIA RADJEB: Alia Radjeb.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Could you spell it for the record?

ALIA RADJEB: A-L-I-A. And last name is R-A-D-J-E-B.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Thank you. And Baraka Cafe is going into a location that used to be a CV, correct?

ALIA RADJEB: Used to be Boca Grande.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Can you tell us what Baraka Cafe will be all about?

ALIA RADJEB: North African cuisine, like Moroccan. Little French, Italian, Spanish combined.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Sounds yummy.

And just to confirm, you will have no seats outside currently?

ALIA RADJEB: Not now. I'm not applying until next time, hopefully.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: And you're seeking to be open 10:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. seven days a week?

ALIA RADJEB: That's what I'm seeking right now, yes. Thank you.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Anyone in favor of this petition?

(No response.)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Anyone in opposition to this petition?

(No response.)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Okay. I  
vote to grant.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:  
Granted.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

ALIA RADJEB: Thank you very much.

(Fire Chief Gerald Reardon arrives.)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: For  
the record, Chief Reardon has arrived for the  
hearing.

APPLICATION: SAM WILLIAMS

D/B/A THE BACON TRUCK

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Application: Sam Williams doing business as The  
Bacon Truck has applied for a vendor/peddler  
license to vend at 1 Rogers Street on Mondays  
from 11:00 a.m. until 2:00 p.m.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Good afternoon. Please state and spell your name for the record.

SAM WILLIAMS: My name is Sam Williams, S-A-M, W-I-L-L-I-A-M-S.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Mr. Williams, is this the same Bacon Truck that does the bacon in like a flower shape or something?

SAM WILLIAMS: We have done a couple bacon bouquets for weddings in the past.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: I only learned about this very recently, I must admit. So that's why I'm asking. And you guys, is this the same truck that goes to like the arsenal?

SAM WILLIAMS: Yes, we do vend at the arsenal program. Currently we have been vending at a number of different programs in and around Boston going on three years now.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: And this is to go through 2017, I noticed, on Monday 11:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m.?

SAM WILLIAMS: Yes.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE: I've got a question. So how many items are on your menu?

SAM WILLIAMS: Our menu is that we vend for lunch is for nine different sandwiches, three sides and three desserts. Everything is made in-house.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE: And everything has bacon in it?

SAM WILLIAMS: Everything has bacon in it.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE: Thank you.

SAM WILLIAMS: Except for the pickles.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Anything else?

FIRE CHIEF GERALD REARDON: Nothing.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Anyone else in favor of this petition?

(No response.)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Anyone in opposition to this petition?

(No response.)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: I vote to grant.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE: Approve.

FIRE CHIEF GERALD REARDON: Approve.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

SAM WILLIAMS: Thank you, guys.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Thank you.

APPLICATION: MARIANNA EXPERIENCED

CLOTHING, LLC D/B/A OONA'S EXPERIENCED  
CLOTHING

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Application: Marianna Experienced Clothing,  
LLC doing business as Oona's Experienced  
Clothing has applied for a second-hand  
goods license at 1240 Massachusetts  
Avenue.

ATTY. TOM HUNNEWELL: My name is Tom  
Hunnewell, H-U-N-N-E-W-E-L-L.

I'm here with Marianna Pease.

MARIANNA PEASE: M-A-R-I-A-N-N-A,  
P-E-A-S-E.

ATTY TOM HUNNEWELL: And we're here for  
the issuance of a secondhand goods license with  
regard to a business called Oona's  
Experienced Clothing located at 1208-1210 Mass  
Ave.

The store has operated there since

1972. And Ms. Pease is the brand-new owner of the store just as a number of days ago, and because the used good license, which has been in place forever is personal to the previous operator. So we're applying for a reissuance of that.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Okay. And I just want to note for the record that our agenda says 1240, but I do note that on the application and as well on your inspection of approval, it has it 1208-1210. Are you receiving mail there?

MARIANNA PEASE: Yes.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Is both hyphenated or is it one or the other?

MARIANNA PEASE: Some of it may be hyphenated.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: So if it's hyphenated, it gets to you?

MARIANNA PEASE: Yes.

ATTY TOM HUNNEWELL: I think I pulled  
1208-1210 off the --

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Yes. It's  
existing in terms of it being a retail store?

ATTY TOM HUNNEWELL: Yes. The business  
is substantially the same as it has been for  
decades.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: And what are  
the hours of operation?

MARIANNA PEASE: We're going to have a  
12:00 to 6:00.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Seven days a  
week?

MARIANNA PEASE: Seven days a week.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Anything  
else?

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:  
No questions.

FIRE CHIEF GERALD REARDON: No questions.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Anyone in favor of this petition?

(No response.)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Anyone in opposition to this petition?

(No response.)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: I would vote to grant.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:  
Approved.

FIRE CHIEF GERALD REARDON: Approved.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

HACKNEY APPEAL: BHUPINDER KANITH

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:  
Hackney Appeal. Bhupinder Kainth, holder of a Cambridge hackney license due to the August 23, 2016 decision of Executive Director, Elizabeth Lint, to uphold the \$100 fine issued by Officer

Szeto on August 10, 2016.

(PARTIES, SWORN.)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Good  
afternoon.

Could you please state your names for the  
record? We'll start with the officer.

OFFICER ANTONIO ARCOS: Antonio Arcos.

THE REPORTER: Officer, would you spell  
your first name and last name?

OFFICER ANTONIO ARCOS: A-N-T-O-N-I-O,  
last name A-R-C-O-S.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Sir, your  
name?

BHUPINDER KAINTH: My last name --

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: And your  
first name.

BHUPINDER KAINTH: B-H-U-P-I-N-D-E-R.  
Last name K-A-I-N-T-H.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Thank you.

Officer Arcos, do you mind restating the facts of the case?

OFFICER ANTONIO ARCOS: On August 3, 2016, the Hackney Unit received a complaint on the driver of Medallion 220 for a fare refusal at the Royal Sonesta Hotel. The driver of Medallion 220, later identified as Bhupinder Kainth, was the first cab in the stand. A guest from the hotel got inside Kainth's cab and asked to be taken to the Tip O'Neil Building located at 10 Causeway in Boston. The guest got out of the cab because Kainth didn't know the location. She then approached the driver of Medallion 85, who was second in line. The driver of Medallion 85, later identified as Nicolas Saint-Jean, advised that guest that Kainth knows where the location and should take her. The guest then returned to the front entrance and told the doorman about her experience with the first cab. The doorman also

tells the guest that the first cab should have taken her to her destination, but she left the hotel in Saint-Jean's cab.

Officer Szeto spoke with Kainth who stated -- who states he did not refuse a fare from the Royal Sonesta Hotel. He states the guest got inside the cab and got out because she had an issue with the ten dollar minimum for using a credit card.

Officer Szeto then spoke with Saint-Jean who said the guest paid him \$10 in cash instead of using a credit card for the ride to Boston. I also spoke with the doorman, later identified as Andrew Mikula, who states that the guest complained to him about the cab driver not knowing the location.

And after Officer Szeto completed an investigation, he believed that he was in violation of the Hackney rules and regulations.

Kainth will be issued a fine for a fare refusal from the Royal Sonesta Hotel.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Thank you.

Mr. Kainth?

BHUPINDER KAINTH: That lady come in my taxi. But she ask me "Is air conditioning working?" I said, "Yes, it's working." She sit in my car. After she stay, I start my car. After, she say, "I have a card, MasterCard." I say "Minimum \$10." After she says "stop," I stopped the car and she left in the other car. Other car also -- she left with the doorman. She sits in that next car. After she go to doorman, they ask something, the doorman coming into my taxi, I said, "I take it, but she not going to my car for that \$10 minimum Master Visa card." That's it. No argument, no -- no abuse, anything. She don't like to pay the \$10. They have minimum \$5.90. So she asked me "I have

card." I said, "Minimum in my window, \$10 minimum on card."

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Who has a \$5.90 minimum?

BHUPINDER KAINTH: In the meter, maybe \$6, but she no like to pay the minimum \$10.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: So you're saying that from the Royal Sonesta Hotel to 10 Causeway would have been like \$6?

BHUPINDER KAINTH: Maybe \$10 near the TD Garden. But she no like to pay \$10 minimum card. And she no talk to me or anything. She left in my car.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: At what time was this?

BHUPINDER KAINTH: I think maybe 11:00-something. I'm not sure.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: 10:47 military time, what time is that?

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:

4:30.

BHUPINDER KAINTH: Only \$10 difference, I mean, the card problem. So after the doorman take her, again, she come in my car, but she say "I don't go this car, I go to other car."

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: In 2013 and 2015, you received fines as well for refusing fares, is that correct?

BHUPINDER KAINTH: That's -- I know the truth and I end up here, but the same problem, I ask the -- in that \$10 minimum. He don't say anything to me. He left -- three car, he no go to the three car, after both car, I don't know number, 18 number, or something, he take this car. Behind me, 207, he not talk to this guy. 138, he no take this guy. Three people, three taxi no take this guy. But I only ask minimum \$10. Simple as he going to same -- the same

taxi, same thing.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:

So, typically, what is the cost to go to the Royal Sonesta Hotel to the Tip O'Neil Building, what would that cost?

BHUPINDER KAINTH: Which one now?

FIRE CHIEF GERALD REARDON: TD Garden.

BHUPINDER KAINTH: TD Garden, maybe \$7, between -- the same like it. TD Garden, \$10, \$9-something.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: We started at \$5.90, we went up to \$6, now \$7, now \$10?

BHUPINDER KAINTH: Maybe \$6.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:

So did she offer to pay cash?

BHUPINDER KAINTH: She no offer me cash, but she ask me if I have MasterCard, Visa card. I said, "No problem, but the minimum \$10." That's it, sir. No argument. No anything. She

left. Plus she asked me to put full air conditioning, very hot. I set No. 1 AC on in the car -- in the taxi. When she sit in my taxi, I put full air conditioning.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:

Officer Arcos, can you tell me, was the complaining party the fare?

OFFICER ANTONIO ARCOS: It was a guest at the Royal Sonesta Hotel.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:

This was an investigation conducted by Officer Szeto?

OFFICER ANTONIO ARCOS: Yes.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: I may be able to add.

OFFICER ANTONIO ARCOS: The complainant, the direct complainant to us was the Hotel security, Fran Reverios (phonetic), she's in charge of the security there.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:

Do you know if Officer Szeto had occasion to speak with the passenger?

OFFICER ANTONIO ARCOS: I don't believe so.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:

So the version is coming from --

OFFICER ANTONIO ARCOS: Fran Reveiros who was the head of the security at the Royal Sonesta Hotel.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: And I note for the record that also from Saint-Jean, who is the driver of Medallion 85, who was the one that took the guest, who said that the guest paid him in cash.

BHUPINDER KAINTH: Some time the people I took them, \$3.30, they ask the card, but they pay over there in the cash. So many time happen, I go to -- cross the street, okay, they have both

\$5, they say "I have card," people coming from -- business people, they say "I have card." I say "Okay, no problem. Not me, everybody. When they go over there, they give the cash, \$4, \$5 something. So they not the charge card. They ask for the card, but over there they pay the \$5 or so.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: I'm sorry. I don't understand. You're saying that sometimes you allow people to pay less than the minimum?

BHUPINDER KAINTH: Minimum is the customer going to cross the street, Second Street the First Street, they ask when they sit in the car -- taxi, they ask me "I have MasterCard Visa card." I said, "Okay, no problem." When they go Third Street, like \$5, Third Street, they go like \$3.30 something, they pay the cash. They don't charge \$10 card. They pay cash, \$4, \$5.

FIRE CHIEF GERALD REARDON: So the \$10

minimum only applies to a credit card?

BHUPINDER KAINTH: For -- on the sign,  
minimum \$10.

FIRE CHIEF GERALD REARDON: The minimum  
of \$10 only applies to a credit card?

BHUPINDER KAINTH: Yes.

FIRE CHIEF GERALD REARDON: So you're  
saying when they get over there, if it's only 3  
or \$4, they decide to pay cash sometimes?

BHUPINDER KAINTH: They pay cash, right.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:  
Did you at any time tell the woman that you  
didn't know where the destination was?

BHUPINDER KAINTH: The lady?

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:  
Yes.

BHUPINDER KAINTH: The doorman know. I  
don't know.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:

So when she got in the cab, she didn't tell you where she wanted to go?

BHUPINDER KAINTH: She ask me 10 Causeway Street, near the TD Garden. I said, "Okay. Sit down." After she sit down, when I start the car, she say "I have card." I said, "Minimum \$10." That's it, sir. No argument. After she say "stop," she left in the next car. She no sit in the next car, but she go to the next car, 85 number, after she go to the doorman. The doorman coming in my taxi. He said, "You don't know?" I said, "No. I tell her. She asked me, minimum \$10." But she say "I don't go in taxi." She took the 85 number. I have no problem.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: So you never told you her you didn't know where 10 Causeway Street was?

BHUPINDER KAINTH: Yes, I know. They have a passport office over there, and TD Garden

over there, and the Portland Street have fingerprint office. All those. CVS over there. North Station over there.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:

It appears we have several versions here. I would recommend we uphold the fine based on the fact that the woman had cash, she paid that to the second driver. I'm not sure it was as much an issue of the credit card minimum being an issue when she paid \$10 anyway.

It appears to me that indications are that the fare was refused, and I would support the actions that were taken by the issuing officer given those facts.

FIRE CHIEF GERALD REARDON: I concur.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: The fine is upheld.

ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

CHRIS KOSINSKI

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Chris Kosinski, on behalf of East Side Bar and Grill, has applied for a one-day amendment to an existing license on October 2, 2016 from 10:00 a.m. until 5:00 p.m. for an outside patio during Ribfest. No food or drink will be served there. Patrons will be able to bring food and drink out to the patio. This has been approved by special events and they have their SBU permit.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

SEZ, INC.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Cancellation of VIC 00381, Sez, Inc doing business as Downstairs Café, has notified us that they're no longer operating.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: We'll cancel the file and the license.

NIGHT MARKET

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: The License Commission has received notice from Night Market that they will be closed on October 5 and 27, 2016.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: The Board acknowledges.

PRESIDENT AND FELLOWS OF HARVARD COLLEGE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: President and Fellows of Harvard College, Harvard Law School Pub has requested a change in hours and days of operation from Monday through Friday 4:00 p.m. to 12:00 a.m. to Sunday through Saturday, 11:00 a.m. to 1:00 a.m. The entertainment application has been withdrawn.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: So I'm clear, does that mean Monday through Friday are staying 4:00 p.m. to 12:00 a.m.?

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: No.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: And they're just changing Sunday and Saturday, or adding Sunday and Saturday, or are they going the entire week 11:00 a.m. to 1:00 a.m.?

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Correct. Sunday through Saturday.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Just for the record, I think this had been signed previously in a bulk.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

That's right.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:

Initial my initial.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: I'm just going to write here, Sunday through Saturday, because the application says -- I'll put seven days a week. And this is educational extended one day, so that's why it's not going through the

usual process yet?

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Correct.

BUILDING FORM, LLC

Building Form, LLC has requested a change in ownership of an existing garage license, GAR10067, at 189 Norfolk Street, from Lillian T. Denekevicz to Building Form, LLC.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

CAMBRIDGE BOY SCOUTS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Cambridge Boy Scouts has notified the Commission that they will be holding a camporee at the American Legion Marsh Post from 10/7 through 10. DCR permits have been obtained and State Police and Cambridge Police have been notified.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Board

acknowledges.

CRYSTAL GEORGE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Crystal George doing business as Porter Square:  
Psychic has filed a waiver for failure to timely  
renew her license and has paid all the back fees.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: I would --  
based on the record, I would do a violation of  
one -- held in abeyance for a year because they  
have done this in the past.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:

Agreed.

FIRE CHIEF GERALD REARDON: Agreed.

MARC SHULMAN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Marc  
Shulman, doing business as the Windsor Inn has  
filed a waiver for failure to timely renew his

license. This was heard on September 13 at which time a violation warning was voted.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Violation warning, we're just signing the documents since we didn't have it last time.

FIRE CHIEF GERALD REARDON: Is that a past violation as well?

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Yeah. Don't sign that. Commissioner Burke and I both voted on that the last time. We didn't have the paper.

DAN GRIFFIN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Dan Griffin on behalf of MIT, has requested a further extension of their special noise variance through October 31.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: This is for the manholes on MIT property. I would vote to grant. We haven't received any issues or

complaints.

FIRE CHIEF GERALD REARDON: Agreed.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:  
Agreed.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

CHARLES MARQUARDT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Charles Marquardt, on behalf of Cambridge Spirits, has applied for one day amendments to their existing license on September 29, October 13, October 27 and November 10 to extend their premise to include the south plaza, adjacent to 450 Kendall Street, for beer and wine tastings.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: I don't have an issue with it, but I would like to see a floor plan first before we issue the -- I'm happy to vote on it, but I want a floor plan together with

this so that we're aware where it is so if our investigators are inclined to go there, they know exactly where it's supposed to be.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE: I would agree with your assessment.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: So granted based on the submission of the floor plan confirming that there's continuity of the regulations.

FAWAZ ABU RUBIEH

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:  
Fawaz Abu Rubieh, holder of Peddler License PED10049, has notified the License Commission that his truck is inoperable due to engine issues.

This had been heard at the last hearing as well and a suspension of the license was voted until such time he was inspected, but he's not

operating.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: This is a mobile food truck. Board acknowledges and we canceled the truck because he didn't renew. That's why he didn't renew, right, because the truck doesn't work?

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: He did renew, he hadn't been inspected, but he didn't get inspected because he couldn't use the truck and I don't know how it was renewed. It should not have been renewed.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: At this point, I would say Board acknowledges, and I would not do anything on the cancellation in the system with regard to either of them, and especially with regard to the restaurant because even though he sold it, we don't know if he's closed it. So obviously we don't want to cancel the license until such time, but we should make a

note of it on the electronic file so the Board acknowledges.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: He's still operating his other restaurant on Mass Ave.

JEFF MacLEAN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Jeff MacLean, on behalf of College Tour Movie, has applied for a special noise variance on Saturday, October 1 and Sunday, October 2 from 7:00 a.m. until 10:00 p.m. to run a diesel generator and equipment trucks on Mass Ave, Out of Town News, Plympton, between Memorial Drive and Mt. Auburn Street and DeWolfe Street, between Memorial Drive and Mt. Auburn Street.

This went through special events and he was working with Steve Larosa, Traffic and Parking.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Vote to

grant.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:

Moved.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

COMMERCE BANK & TRUST COMPANY

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Commerce Bank & Trust Company, as secured party,  
has notified the License Commission that  
Medallion 76 has been purchased by My Brother's  
Cab, Inc.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted. I  
would vote to grant.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:

Agreed.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

MALT & WINE LICENSES WITH OR WITHOUT  
ENTERTAINMENT

CAROLYN COYLE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Malt and wine licenses with or without entertainment. Carolyn Coyle has applied for a malt and wine license to be exercised at MIT Museum, 265 Massachusetts Avenue, Cambridge, on 10/14/16 from 6:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. for a networking event. Expected attendance: 1200 people.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted, police detail and fire.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE: I agree.

EDWARD O'CONNOR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Edward O'Connor has applied for a malt and wine with entertainment license for recorded/live music and amplification system to be exercised at Canal Park, 100 Cambridgeside Place, Cambridge,

on 10/2/16 from 7:00 a.m. to 1:30 p.m. for a 5K road race. Expected attendance: 4000 people.

This was approved by special events also.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

Police detail required.

BEN PERTLER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Ben Pertler has applied for a malt and wine license to be exercised at 100 Main Street, Cambridge, on 10/9/16 from 7:30 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. for a reception. Expected attendance: 40 people.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

QUANTUM WEI

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Quantum Wei has applied for a malt and wine license to be exercised at MIT Wong Auditorium, 70 Memorial Drive, Cambridge, on 11/17/16 from

4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. for a networking event.

Expected attendance: 200 people.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Police  
detail required.

PAUL PARRAVANO

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Paul  
Parravano has applied for a malt and wine license  
to be exercised at MIT Walker Memorial, 142  
Memorial Drive, Cambridge, on 10/14/16 from 6:00  
p.m. to 10:00 p.m. for a fundraiser. Expected  
attendance: 200 people.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.  
Police detail required.

ELIAS TUOMAALA

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Elias  
Tuomaala has applied for a malt and wine license  
with entertainment for recorded/live music to be

exercised at the Center for European Studies, 27  
Kirkland Street, Cambridge, on 10/14/16 from 6:00  
p.m. to 9:00 p.m. for an Oktoberfest party.

Expected attendance: 95 people.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: They only  
requested a malt license. Granted and police  
detail required.

ASHLEY SLIDER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Ashley Slider on behalf of John Harvard's  
Brewery, holder of a brewery license, has applied  
for a malt license to be exercised at JFK/Mt.  
Auburn Street, Cambridge on 10/9/16 from 12:00  
p.m. to 6:00 p.m. for Oktoberfest. Expected  
attendance: 99 people.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

GABRIEL DELSIGNORE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Gabriel Delsignore on behalf of Alden & Harlow, holder of an all alcoholic beverages restaurant license, has applied for a malt license to be exercised at 40 Brattle Street, Cambridge, on 10/9/16 from 12:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. for Oktoberfest. Expected attendance: 100 people.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: So why are they requesting -- I'm confused.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: The beer gardens.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: But it wouldn't be a one-day license. It would be an extension -- I mean, they're saying they're going to do it at 40 Brattle Street, that's the license location.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: That should have been an extension. John Harvard's is

not.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: This is October 9th. I would say we deny this and they can submit it as an extension, or we can table it and have them resubmit it. Yeah. We have to deny it anyways. It's a one-day alcohol if it's an extension of the premises. Denied.

HELENE RIEU-ISAACS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Helene Rieu-Isaacs has applied for a wine license to be exercised at the International School of Boston, 45 Matignon Road, Cambridge, on 11/1/16 from 7:30 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. for a school event. Expected attendance: 50 people.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

KAILEY WALSH

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Kailey Walsh has applied for a malt and wine license for a 30th reunion welcome reception to be exercised at 1737 Cambridge Street, Cambridge, on 10/13/16 from 7:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m.

Expected attendance: 200 people.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Which one is that?

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:  
Kailey Walsh.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: We don't have that one.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: There should be four.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Let me see. This says Friday -- we just approved the Kailey Isaacs for the International School of Boston.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:  
That's a different person.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: That's the

last one we have. And then we have --

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: These were the ones that when we formatted and got lost.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: How about I read them and you find them and take the notes on it?

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Yep.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: That will be easier, otherwise, we'll go insane.

BILL MANLEY

Bill Manley has applied for an entertainment license for recorded/live music and amplification system for the 38th annual Oktoberfest, Harvard Square, Cambridge, on 10/09/16 from 12:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. Expected attendance: 150,000 people.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Obviously, it went through special events.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Went through events and police detail is required. Granted.

ENA VALENZUELA

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Now I know where we are.

Ena Valenzuela has applied for an entertainment license for patrons dancing, recorded/live music and amplification system for a celebration/party at Graham and Parks playground, 44 Linnaean Street, Cambridge, on 10/1/16 from 3:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. Expected attendance: 150 people.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

PEACE MODUBVONWU

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Peace Modubvonwu has applied for an entertainment

license for a banquet at the Student Organization Center at Hilles (SOCH), 59 Shepard Street, Cambridge, on 10/1/16 from 6:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. Expected attendance: 100 people.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

PEACE MODUBVONWU

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Peace Modubvonwu has applied for an entertainment license for a party at the Student Organization Center Hilles (SOCH), 59 Shepard Street, Cambridge, on 10/1/16 from 10:00 p.m. to 2:00 a.m. Expected attendance: 100 people.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: It's because it's a photocopy. It's the same thing.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: We'll leave that one.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: It's at a different hall. SOH event hall. It's the same

name.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Different time from 10:00 to 2:00.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Same day at  
a different hall as well.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: 59

Shepard, same hall.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Oh.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Different time 10:00 p.m. to 2:00 a.m.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

PRIYANKA KUMAR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Priyanka Kumar has applied for an entertainment  
license for a party at Lowell House Dining Hall,  
10 Holyoke Place, Cambridge, on 10/7/16 from 9:00  
p.m. to 1:00 a.m. Expected attendance: 300  
people.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

Police detail required.

KYANN ANDERSON

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

KyAnn Anderson has applied for an entertainment license for a block party at Granville Road between Saville and Vassal, Cambridge, on 10/5/16 with rain date 10/6/16 from 5:30 p.m. to 7:30 p.m. Expected attendance: 250 people.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

MARK LINGA

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Mark

Linga has applied for an entertainment license for a concert at MIT Bartos Theater, 20 Ames Street, Cambridge, on 9/29/16 from 8:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. Expected attendance: 80 people.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

KRIS PRICE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Kris Price has applied for an entertainment license for a block party at Le Laboratoire Cambridge, 650 East Kendall Street, Cambridge, on 9/29/16 from 5:30 p.m. to 10:30 p.m. Expected attendance: 900 people.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Is this a private place? That's why they don't have the block party permit?

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Yes.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

I have two more here I have to move. Keep going. I already took them out of order.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: What is that?

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Kailey Walsh.

KAILEY WALSH

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Kailey Walsh has applied for a malt and wine license for a 30th reunion welcome reception to be exercised at 1737 Cambridge Street, Cambridge, on 10/13/16 from 7:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m.

Expected attendance: 200 people.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Does she have a few more because I have a whole bunch.

Read them all.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Kailey Walsh has applied for a malt and wine license for a 40th reunion welcome reception to be exercised at Weld Boathouse, 971 Memorial Drive, Cambridge, on 10/13/16 from 6:30 p.m. to 9:30 p.m. Expected attendance: 200 people.

Kailey Walsh has applied for a malt and wine license for a 30th reunion luncheon to be exercised at Barker Center, 12 Quincy Street,

Cambridge, on 10/15/16 from 12 noon to 1:30 p.m.

Expected attendance: 300 people.

Kailey Walsh has applied for a malt and wine license for a 30th reunion Sunday brunch to be exercised at Quincy House, 58 Plympton Street, Cambridge, on 10/16/16 from 9:30 a.m. to 11:30 a.m. Expected attendance: 250 people.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Read the one for October 14.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:  
October 13, 16, that's all I have.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: For the record, I have here one on October 1:37 to 10:00 p.m. October 13, 6:30 to 9:30 p.m. So the first one was 30th, the second one a 40th. The 15, 30th noon to 1:30. 16, 30, 9:30 to 11:30.

What day is the 16th?

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:  
Sunday.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Saturday.

FIRE CHIEF GERALD REARDON: Sunday.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: So for the one on the 16, I would approve from 10:00 a.m. to 11:30.

There's one for the 14, 30, 7:00 p.m. to 10:30. The 14th for a 45th from 6:30 to 10:00 p.m., and then a 40th on the 15th from 7:00 p.m. to midnight.

And on the 15th from 6:30 to 11:30 another 30th.

Granted to all of them. The only one I would make a change to is the one for the 16th from 10:00 a.m. forward.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:

Agreed.

ZACH WEATHERFORD

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Zach

Weatherford has applied for a malt license with entertainment for a concert to be exercised at 11 JFK Street, Cambridge on 10/8/16 from 8:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m. Expected attendance: 100 people.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

BEN PERTLER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Ben Pertler has applied for a malt and wine license for a reception to be exercised at 265 Massachusetts Avenue, Cambridge, on 9/29/16 from 6:30 p.m. to 9:30 p.m. Expected attendance: 60 people.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

BEN PERTLER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Ben Pertler has applied for a malt and wine license for a reception to be exercised at 100 Main

Street, Cambridge, on 9/29/16 from 4:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. Expected attendance: 75 people.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

Zecceo (phonetic) Sublet for --

ZECCEO SUBLET

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Wait a minute. That's my add-ons.

Zecceo Sublet on behalf of Gorham

Brothers Hat Shop located at 43 Brattle Street has applied for a one-day malt license to be exercised on September 29 from 5:00 to 9:00 for an anniversary party with 50 expected.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

CHRIS MARTIN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Chris Martin on behalf of Matignon High School, a registered nonprofit, located at 1 Matignon Road

has applied for a one-day all alcohol license to be exercised on Saturday, October 1 from 4:00 to 8:00 p.m. and 6:00 to 11:00 p.m. for reunion dinners with 70 expected.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

AFASADA TULAGADABA (phonetic)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Afasada Tulagadaba, on behalf of the Association of Student Activities at MIT has applied for a one-day entertainment license to be exercised at 471 Memorial Drive on September 30 from 7:00 to 9:00 p.m. for a cultural event with 130 participants.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

Police detail required.

REBECCA LAY

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Rebecca Lay on behalf of the Amigos School has applied for a vendor/peddler license to be exercised from October 22 to 23, 2016 from 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. to sell baked goods for the head of the Charles at JFK Street near Memorial Drive.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: This says it's still pending permission of the owner of the premises, so I would defer --

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: They do this every year.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: We need the permission. I would defer. We have time. It's October 22.

HEATH SCHUBERT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Heath Schubert on behalf of the Taco Party has applied for a vendor/peddler license to sell at Third and

Binney on September 29, October 6, October 13,  
October 20 and October 27.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

RJ HOLLY

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: RJ

Holly on behalf of Cambridge Water Department has  
applied for a special noise variance to be  
exercised on October 15 through October 16 from  
1:00 p.m. to 12:00 p.m. for jackhammers,  
backhoes, dump trucks and utility trucks for  
pumps and electricity.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

MOHAMMED ALIBACKI (phonetic)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Mohammed Alibacki on behalf of the MIT Arabic  
Students Organization has applied for a one-day  
entertainment licence to be exercised on

October 1 from 6:00 p.m. to midnight for a folk dance party.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: And then this is the Central Square Theater.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Yeah.

Commissioner Reardon, you have the pleasure of not having to vote on this.

Last hearing we voted -- we had Central Square Theater for failure to provide information requested by us for the ABCC, and because they didn't show up, we voted a violation because they didn't have the information, they didn't show up, we voted a violation for one day. We have since found out that they did, in fact, provide the information to the ABCC prior to us scheduling the hearing. And because of miscommunications and whatnot and I think all the craziness with the new system, we didn't find out. So I would

vote to revoke -- not revoke, amend our vote and basically vote no violation.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE: I agree.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Okay.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Last but not least, if anyone has reviewed the minutes from August 9 and August 23, whoever was here.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: August 9 and 24.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:  
Was I here the 9th?

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: I don't think you were.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:  
The 24 --

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: I reviewed everything you sent me. I don't know what dates those are. Whatever you sent me, I reviewed.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: 9 and  
24 I sent you.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Okay.

POLICE COMMISSIONER CHRISTOPHER BURKE:  
24th.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: 9th?

FIRE CHIEF GERALD REARDON: Yes.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Motion to  
approve.

Granted, yes? Yes. Granted. Thank you.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: I  
don't think there's anything else.

(Hearing was adjourned.)

## ERRATA SHEET

INSTRUCTIONS: After reading the transcript, note any change or correction and the reason therefor on this sheet. Sign and date this errata sheet.

PAGE	LINE	
_____	_____	CHANGE: _____
		REASON: _____
_____	_____	CHANGE: _____
		REASON: _____
_____	_____	CHANGE: _____
		REASON: _____
_____	_____	CHANGE: _____
		REASON: _____
_____	_____	CHANGE: _____
		REASON: _____

I have read the foregoing transcript, and except for any corrections or changes noted above, I hereby subscribe to the transcript as an accurate record of the statement(s) made by me.

-----  
 -----  
 -----

## CERTIFICATION

Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Norfolk, ss.

I, Jill Kourafas, a Notary Public in and for the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, do hereby certify:

That the hearing herein before set forth is a true and accurate record of the proceedings.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 1st day of October, 2016.

-----  
Jill Kourafas  
Certified Shorthand Reporter  
License No. 14903  
Notary Public

THE FOREGOING CERTIFICATION OF THIS TRANSCRIPT  
DOES NOT APPLY TO ANY REPRODUCTION OF THE SAME IN  
ANY RESPECT UNLESS UNDER THE DIRECT CONTROL AND/OR  
DIRECTION OF THE CERTIFYING REPORTER

<u>§</u>	
<u>§10</u> [21] - 28:11, 29:10, 29:16, 29:18, 30:1, 30:6, 30:10, 30:11, 31:3, 31:12, 31:19, 32:9, 32:12, 32:18, 35:18, 35:19, 36:3, 36:5, 37:6, 37:13, 38:10	<u>11/17/16</u> [1] - 51:19
<u>§100</u> [1] - 25:19	<u>11:00</u> [10] - 7:6, 7:7, 7:8, 7:9, 18:19, 20:2, 40:15, 41:5, 66:4, 68:3
<u>§3.30</u> [2] - 34:17, 35:17	<u>11:00-something</u> [1] - 30:17
<u>§5</u> [1] - 35:18	<u>11:30</u> [4] - 64:6, 64:16, 65:5, 65:10
<u>§5.90</u> [3] - 29:19, 30:4, 32:12	<u>12</u> [2] - 63:19, 64:1
<u>§6</u> [1] - 32:13	<u>1200</u> [1] - 50:8
<u>0</u>	<u>1208-1210</u> [3] - 22:17, 23:11, 24:2
<u>00381</u> [1] - 39:15	<u>1240</u> [2] - 22:7, 23:9
<u>02139</u> [1] - 1:17	<u>12:00</u> [8] - 7:7, 24:11, 40:14, 40:19, 53:14, 54:7, 57:17, 70:10
<u>1</u>	<u>13</u> [5] - 44:1, 45:12, 64:11, 64:14, 70:1
<u>1</u> [6] - 18:18, 33:2, 48:10, 67:19, 68:2, 71:1	<u>130</u> [1] - 68:13
<u>10</u> [8] - 26:1, 27:10, 30:8, 37:3, 37:16, 42:16, 45:12, 60:17	<u>138</u> [1] - 31:17
<u>10/09/16</u> [1] - 57:17	<u>14</u> [2] - 64:9, 65:6
<u>10/1/16</u> [3] - 58:13, 59:3, 59:12	<u>142</u> [1] - 52:9
<u>10/13/16</u> [3] - 56:4, 63:6, 63:15	<u>14903</u> [1] - 75:14
<u>10/14/16</u> [3] - 50:6, 52:10, 53:2	<u>1498</u> [1] - 10:6
<u>10/15/16</u> [1] - 64:1	<u>14th</u> [1] - 65:7
<u>10/16/16</u> [1] - 64:6	<u>15</u> [3] - 2:6, 64:15, 70:9
<u>10/2/16</u> [1] - 51:1	<u>150</u> [1] - 58:14
<u>10/5/16</u> [1] - 61:8	<u>150,000</u> [1] - 57:18
<u>10/6/16</u> [1] - 61:9	<u>15th</u> [2] - 65:8, 65:10
<u>10/7</u> [1] - 42:16	<u>16</u> [4] - 64:11, 64:16, 65:4, 70:9
<u>10/7/16</u> [1] - 60:17	<u>16th</u> [2] - 64:17, 65:13
<u>10/8/16</u> [1] - 66:3	<u>1728</u> [1] - 15:16
<u>10/9/16</u> [3] - 51:11, 53:14, 54:7	<u>1737</u> [2] - 56:3, 63:5
<u>100</u> [7] - 50:19, 51:10, 54:8, 59:4, 59:13, 66:4, 66:19	<u>18</u> [2] - 2:8, 31:15
<u>10:00</u> [22] - 7:9, 8:13, 15:18, 17:11, 39:5, 48:11, 50:7, 52:11, 55:14, 56:4, 59:3, 59:12, 60:3, 60:10, 61:18, 63:6, 64:13, 65:4, 65:7, 65:14	<u>189</u> [1] - 42:8
<u>10:30</u> [2] - 62:6, 65:7	<u>1972</u> [1] - 23:1
<u>10:47</u> [1] - 30:18	<u>1:00</u> [4] - 40:15, 41:5, 60:18, 70:10
<u>11</u> [1] - 66:2	<u>1:30</u> [3] - 51:1, 64:1, 64:16
<u>11/1/16</u> [1] - 55:13	<u>1:37</u> [1] - 64:13
	<u>1st</u> [1] - 75:11
	<u>2</u>
	<u>2</u> [2] - 39:5, 48:10
	<u>20</u> [2] - 61:16, 70:2
	<u>200</u> [5] - 52:2, 52:12, 56:5, 63:7, 63:16
	<u>2013</u> [1] - 31:7
	<u>2015</u> [1] - 31:8
	<u>2016</u> [10] - 1:18, 6:2, 6:10, 25:18,

<p>26:1, 27:4, 39:5, 40:5, 69:3, 75:11</p> <p><b>2017</b> [1] - 20:2</p> <p><b>207</b> [1] - 31:16</p> <p><b>21</b> [2] - 2:10, 12:7</p> <p><b>22</b> [2] - 69:3, 69:14</p> <p><b>220</b> [2] - 27:5, 27:7</p> <p><b>23</b> [3] - 25:17, 69:3, 72:8</p> <p><b>24</b> [3] - 72:10, 72:16, 73:2</p> <p><b>24th</b> [1] - 73:5</p> <p><b>25</b> [1] - 2:11</p> <p><b>250</b> [2] - 61:10, 64:7</p> <p><b>265</b> [2] - 50:5, 66:10</p> <p><b>27</b> [4] - 40:5, 45:12, 53:1, 70:2</p> <p><b>28</b> [3] - 1:18, 6:2, 6:10</p> <p><b>29</b> [3] - 45:11, 67:12, 70:1</p> <p><b>2:00</b> [5] - 18:19, 20:3, 59:12, 60:3, 60:10</p>	<p><b>49</b> [1] - 3:16</p> <p><b>4:00</b> [8] - 1:19, 6:2, 6:10, 40:14, 40:19, 52:1, 67:1, 68:2</p> <p><b>4:30</b> [1] - 31:2</p>
<u>3</u>	<u>5</u>
<p><b>3</b> [2] - 27:3, 36:8</p> <p><b>30</b> [5] - 8:6, 13:7, 64:16, 65:6, 68:12</p> <p><b>300</b> [2] - 60:18, 64:2</p> <p><b>30th</b> [7] - 56:2, 63:4, 63:18, 64:4, 64:15, 64:16, 65:11</p> <p><b>31</b> [1] - 44:16</p> <p><b>38th</b> [1] - 57:15</p> <p><b>39</b> [2] - 3:4, 3:5</p> <p><b>3:00</b> [1] - 58:13</p>	<p><b>5</b> [5] - 35:1, 35:4, 35:6, 35:16, 40:4</p> <p><b>50</b> [4] - 4:5, 4:6, 55:15, 67:13</p> <p><b>51</b> [1] - 4:8</p> <p><b>51/66/67</b> [1] - 4:7</p> <p><b>52</b> [2] - 4:9, 4:10</p> <p><b>53</b> [1] - 4:11</p> <p><b>54</b> [1] - 4:12</p> <p><b>55</b> [1] - 4:13</p> <p><b>55/63/64</b> [1] - 4:14</p> <p><b>57</b> [1] - 4:15</p> <p><b>58</b> [2] - 4:16, 64:5</p> <p><b>58/59</b> [1] - 4:17</p> <p><b>59</b> [3] - 59:2, 59:11, 60:6</p> <p><b>5:00</b> [3] - 39:6, 58:13, 67:12</p> <p><b>5:30</b> [2] - 61:9, 62:6</p> <p><b>5K</b> [1] - 51:1</p>
<u>4</u>	<u>6</u>
<p><b>4</b> [3] - 35:4, 35:18, 36:9</p> <p><b>40</b> [7] - 3:6, 3:7, 15:19, 16:3, 51:12, 54:6, 54:16</p> <p><b>4000</b> [1] - 51:2</p> <p><b>40th</b> [3] - 63:13, 64:15, 65:8</p> <p><b>42</b> [2] - 3:8, 3:9</p> <p><b>43</b> [4] - 3:10, 3:11, 14:8, 67:10</p> <p><b>44</b> [2] - 3:12, 58:12</p> <p><b>45</b> [2] - 3:13, 55:13</p> <p><b>450</b> [1] - 45:14</p> <p><b>45th</b> [1] - 65:7</p> <p><b>46</b> [1] - 3:14</p> <p><b>471</b> [1] - 68:12</p> <p><b>48</b> [1] - 3:15</p>	<p><b>6</b> [5] - 2:3, 30:6, 30:9, 32:12, 70:1</p> <p><b>60</b> [2] - 4:18, 66:12</p> <p><b>600</b> [1] - 7:4</p> <p><b>61</b> [2] - 4:19, 4:20</p> <p><b>617.786.7783</b> [1] - 1:23</p> <p><b>62</b> [1] - 4:21</p> <p><b>65</b> [1] - 4:22</p> <p><b>650</b> [1] - 62:5</p> <p><b>67</b> [2] - 5:3, 5:4</p> <p><b>68</b> [2] - 5:5, 5:6</p> <p><b>69</b> [1] - 5:7</p> <p><b>6:00</b> [11] - 24:11, 50:7, 52:10, 53:2, 53:15, 54:7, 57:17, 59:3, 68:3, 69:4, 71:1</p> <p><b>6:30</b> [5] - 63:15, 64:14, 65:7, 65:10, 66:12</p>
	<u>7</u>
	<p><b>7</b> [2] - 32:8, 32:12</p> <p><b>70</b> [4] - 5:8, 5:9, 51:19, 68:4</p>

<p><u>75</u> [1] - 67:2  <u>76</u> [1] - 49:10  <u>7:00</u> [8] - 48:10, 51:1, 52:1, 56:4, 63:6, 65:6, 65:8, 68:12  <u>7:30</u> [3] - 51:11, 55:14, 61:9</p>	<p><u>abuse</u> [1] - 29:17  <u>AC</u> [1] - 33:2  <u>accurate</u> [2] - 74:12, 75:9  <u>acknowledges</u> [5] - 40:7, 43:1, 47:3, 47:13, 48:2  <u>actions</u> [1] - 38:13  <u>Activities</u> [1] - 68:10  <u>add</u> [2] - 33:15, 67:8  <u>add-ons</u> [1] - 67:8  <u>adding</u> [1] - 41:3  <u>additional</u> [1] - 10:12  <u>adjacent</u> [1] - 45:14  <u>adjourned</u> [1] - 73:13  <u>ADMINISTRATIVE</u> [2] - 3:3, 38:19  <u>admit</u> [1] - 19:13  <u>advised</u> [1] - 27:15  <u>Afasada</u> [1] - 68:9  <u>AFASADA</u> [2] - 5:5, 68:7  <u>African</u> [1] - 17:1  <u>afternoon</u> [6] - 7:11, 9:17, 15:9, 16:7, 19:2, 26:4  <u>AGENDA</u> [8] - 2:1, 2:1, 3:1, 3:1, 4:1, 4:2, 5:1, 5:2  <u>agenda</u> [2] - 6:10, 23:8  <u>ago</u> [2] - 13:7, 23:2  <u>agree</u> [3] - 46:5, 50:12, 72:4  <u>agreed</u> [6] - 43:13, 43:14, 45:2, 45:4, 49:15, 65:16  <u>air</u> [3] - 29:6, 33:1, 33:4  <u>alcohol</u> [6] - 11:7, 12:3, 12:5, 12:15, 55:6, 68:1  <u>alcoholic</u> [3] - 7:4, 9:15, 54:4  <u>Alden</u> [1] - 54:3  <u>Alia</u> [1] - 15:19  <u>ALIA</u> [7] - 16:9, 16:12, 16:17, 17:1, 17:8, 17:13, 18:7  <u>alia</u> [1] - 16:9  <u>Alibacki</u> [1] - 70:17  <u>ALIBACKI</u> [2] - 5:9, 70:15  <u>allow</u> [1] - 35:10  <u>allows</u> [1] - 8:12  <u>amend</u> [1] - 72:1  <u>amendment</u> [1] - 39:4  <u>amendments</u> [1] - 45:10  <u>American</u> [1] - 42:16</p>
<u>8</u>	
<p><u>80</u> [1] - 61:18  <u>806</u> [2] - 1:16, 6:11  <u>85</u> [5] - 27:13, 27:14, 34:13, 37:9, 37:14  <u>8:00</u> [5] - 7:8, 8:3, 61:17, 66:3, 68:3</p>	
<u>9</u>	
<p><u>9</u> [4] - 2:5, 72:8, 72:9, 73:1  <u>9-something</u> [1] - 32:10  <u>9/29/16</u> [4] - 61:17, 62:5, 66:11, 67:1  <u>900</u> [1] - 62:7  <u>91</u> [1] - 9:15  <u>95</u> [1] - 53:4  <u>971</u> [1] - 63:14  <u>99</u> [1] - 53:16  <u>9:00</u> [8] - 7:6, 51:11, 53:3, 60:17, 67:2, 67:12, 68:13, 69:3  <u>9:30</u> [5] - 63:16, 64:6, 64:14, 64:16, 66:12  <u>9th</u> [3] - 55:3, 72:12, 73:6</p>	
<u>A</u>	
<p><u>A-L-I-A</u> [1] - 16:12  <u>A-R-C-O-S</u> [1] - 26:11  <u>a.m</u> [26] - 7:6, 7:8, 7:9, 8:3, 8:13, 15:18, 17:11, 18:19, 20:3, 39:6, 40:14, 40:15, 40:19, 41:5, 48:10, 51:1, 59:13, 60:10, 60:18, 64:6, 64:7, 65:4, 65:14, 69:4  <u>ABCC</u> [6] - 12:1, 12:13, 13:7, 13:17, 71:11, 71:16  <u>abeyance</u> [1] - 43:10  <u>able</u> [5] - 13:6, 13:9, 13:15, 33:15, 39:8  <u>Abu</u> [1] - 46:13  <u>ABU</u> [2] - 3:14, 46:11</p>	

Ames [1] - 61:16  
Amigos [1] - 69:1  
amplification [3] - 50:18, 57:15, 58:10  
AND [2] - 3:7, 40:9  
AND/OR [1] - 75:17  
ANDERSON [2] - 4:19, 61:4  
Anderson [1] - 61:6  
Andrew [1] - 28:14  
anniversary [1] - 67:13  
annual [1] - 57:15  
Anthony [1] - 10:4  
ANTHONY [9] - 9:17, 10:3, 10:16, 13:1, 13:4, 13:11, 13:16, 14:9, 15:8  
ANTONIO [9] - 26:7, 26:10, 27:3, 33:8, 33:13, 33:16, 34:4, 34:8  
Antonio [1] - 26:7  
ANY [2] - 75:17, 75:17  
anyway [2] - 8:3, 38:10  
anyways [1] - 55:6  
APPEAL [2] - 2:11, 25:14  
Appeal [1] - 25:16  
Application [4] - 7:2, 9:13, 15:14, 22:4  
APPLICATION [10] - 2:2, 2:4, 2:6, 2:7, 2:9, 6:18, 9:10, 15:11, 18:13, 21:19  
application [6] - 10:19, 13:17, 18:16, 23:9, 40:16, 41:17  
applied [40] - 7:5, 9:16, 15:15, 18:17, 22:6, 39:4, 45:10, 48:9, 50:4, 50:16, 51:9, 51:17, 52:8, 52:18, 53:12, 54:5, 55:11, 56:1, 57:13, 58:8, 58:19, 59:9, 60:15, 61:6, 61:15, 62:3, 63:3, 63:12, 63:17, 64:3, 66:1, 66:9, 66:18, 67:11, 68:1, 68:10, 69:2, 69:18, 70:8, 70:18  
applies [2] - 36:1, 36:5  
APPLY [1] - 75:17  
applying [2] - 17:8, 23:5  
appreciate [1] - 6:5  
approached [1] - 27:13  
approval [1] - 23:10  
approve [6] - 9:7, 15:4, 21:13,

21:14, 65:4, 73:9  
approved [7] - 10:19, 15:6, 25:10, 25:11, 39:9, 51:3, 56:15  
Arabic [1] - 70:17  
ARCOS [8] - 26:7, 26:10, 27:3, 33:8, 33:13, 33:16, 34:4, 34:8  
Arcos [3] - 26:7, 27:1, 33:6  
argument [3] - 29:17, 32:19, 37:7  
arrived [1] - 18:10  
arrives [1] - 18:8  
arsenal [2] - 19:15, 19:17  
Ashley [1] - 53:11  
ASHLEY [2] - 4:11, 53:9  
assessment [1] - 46:5  
Association [1] - 68:9  
AT [1] - 1:16  
attach [1] - 14:7  
attached [2] - 10:15, 13:3  
attendance [25] - 50:8, 51:2, 51:12, 52:2, 52:12, 53:4, 53:16, 54:8, 55:15, 56:5, 57:18, 58:14, 59:4, 59:13, 60:18, 61:10, 61:18, 62:7, 63:7, 63:16, 64:2, 64:7, 66:4, 66:12, 67:2  
Attorney [1] - 12:5  
attorney [1] - 13:11  
ATTORNEY [1] - 14:1  
ATTY [13] - 9:17, 10:3, 10:16, 13:1, 13:4, 13:11, 13:16, 14:9, 15:8, 22:9, 22:14, 24:1, 24:5  
Auburn [3] - 48:13, 48:15, 53:14  
audiotaped [1] - 6:7  
Auditorium [1] - 51:18  
August [6] - 25:17, 26:1, 27:3, 72:8, 72:9  
Ave [3] - 22:18, 48:4, 48:12  
Avenue [7] - 1:16, 6:12, 7:5, 15:17, 22:8, 50:6, 66:11  
aware [2] - 12:4, 46:1  
awhile [1] - 10:4

B

B-H-U-P-I-N-D-E-R [1] - 26:17  
backhoes [1] - 70:11  
BACON [2] - 2:8, 18:14

**Bacon** [2] - 18:17, 19:7  
**bacon** [4] - 19:8, 19:11, 20:13, 20:14  
**baked** [1] - 69:4  
**Bank** [1] - 49:8  
**BANK** [2] - 3:16, 49:6  
**banquet** [1] - 59:1  
**Bar** [1] - 39:3  
**Baraka** [4] - 15:14, 15:15, 16:15, 16:19  
**BARAKA** [4] - 2:6, 2:6, 15:11, 15:12  
**Barker** [1] - 63:19  
**Bartos** [1] - 61:16  
**based** [3] - 38:6, 43:9, 46:7  
**bathrooms** [1] - 16:3  
**beer** [2] - 45:14, 54:12  
**behalf** [13] - 39:3, 44:14, 45:9, 48:8, 53:11, 54:3, 67:9, 67:18, 68:9, 69:1, 69:18, 70:7, 70:17  
**behind** [1] - 31:16  
**below** [1] - 16:4  
**BEN** [4] - 4:7, 51:7, 66:7, 66:16  
**Ben** [3] - 51:8, 66:8, 66:17  
**better** [1] - 8:8  
**between** [5] - 15:18, 32:9, 48:13, 48:14, 61:8  
**beverages** [3] - 7:4, 9:15, 54:4  
**Bhupinder** [2] - 25:16, 27:7  
**BHUPINDER** [23] - 2:11, 25:14, 26:14, 26:17, 29:5, 30:5, 30:10, 30:16, 31:3, 31:10, 32:6, 32:8, 32:13, 32:16, 34:16, 35:11, 36:2, 36:6, 36:10, 36:14, 36:17, 37:3, 37:18  
**BILL** [2] - 4:15, 57:12  
**Bill** [1] - 57:13  
**Binney** [1] - 70:1  
**block** [3] - 61:7, 62:4, 62:10  
**board** [2] - 42:19, 47:3  
**BOARD** [1] - 1:8  
**Board** [5] - 12:1, 12:12, 40:6, 47:13, 48:1  
**Boathouse** [1] - 63:14  
**Boca** [1] - 16:17  
**Boston** [5] - 19:19, 27:11, 28:12, 55:13, 56:16

**bouquets** [1] - 19:11  
**Boy** [1] - 42:14  
**BOY** [2] - 3:9, 42:12  
**brand** [1] - 23:1  
**brand-new** [1] - 23:1  
**Brattle** [3] - 54:6, 54:16, 67:10  
**Brewery** [1] - 53:12  
**brewery** [1] - 53:12  
**brick** [1] - 16:3  
**bring** [1] - 39:8  
**Brothers** [1] - 67:10  
**Brother's** [1] - 49:10  
**brunch** [1] - 64:4  
**BUILDING** [2] - 3:8, 42:5  
**Building** [4] - 27:10, 32:4, 42:6, 42:9  
**building** [1] - 16:3  
**bulk** [1] - 41:10  
**bunch** [1] - 63:9  
**Burke** [3] - 6:15, 9:18, 44:9  
**BURKE** [36] - 1:11, 8:15, 9:6, 14:14, 15:5, 18:4, 20:5, 20:12, 20:16, 21:12, 24:17, 25:9, 31:1, 32:2, 32:14, 33:5, 33:10, 34:1, 34:6, 36:11, 36:15, 36:19, 38:4, 41:13, 43:12, 45:3, 46:4, 49:2, 49:14, 50:11, 64:18, 65:15, 72:3, 72:11, 72:15, 73:4  
**business** [11] - 7:3, 9:13, 15:14, 18:16, 22:5, 22:16, 24:5, 35:2, 39:16, 43:5, 43:18

## C

**C-I-F-R-I-N-O** [1] - 7:14  
**Cab** [1] - 49:11  
**cab** [9] - 27:8, 27:9, 27:11, 27:19, 28:1, 28:3, 28:7, 28:15, 37:1  
**Cafe** [2] - 16:15, 16:19  
**CAFE** [2] - 2:6, 15:12  
**Café** [2] - 15:15, 39:16  
**CAMBRIDGE** [4] - 1:1, 1:2, 3:9, 42:12  
**Cambridge** [42] - 1:16, 1:17, 6:9, 6:11, 10:6, 10:7, 11:9, 11:12, 11:15, 25:17, 42:14, 42:18, 45:9, 50:6, 50:19, 51:10, 51:19, 52:10, 53:2, 53:14, 54:6, 55:13, 56:3,

57:16, 58:12, 59:3, 59:12, 60:17,  
61:8, 61:17, 62:4, 62:5, 63:5,  
63:15, 64:1, 64:6, 66:3, 66:11,  
67:1, 70:7

**Cambridgeside** [1] - 50:19

**camporee** [1] - 42:15

**Canal** [1] - 50:19

**cancel** [2] - 39:18, 47:18

**canceled** [1] - 47:4

**Cancellation** [1] - 39:15

**cancellation** [1] - 47:14

**capacity** [1] - 15:19

**CAPTURING** [1] - 1:23

**car** [21] - 29:8, 29:11, 29:12,  
29:13, 29:16, 30:13, 31:5, 31:6,  
31:13, 31:14, 31:16, 33:3, 35:14,  
37:5, 37:8, 37:9

**card** [20] - 28:9, 28:12, 29:9,  
29:16, 30:1, 30:2, 30:11, 31:4,  
32:17, 34:17, 35:1, 35:2, 35:5,  
35:6, 35:15, 35:18, 36:1, 36:5,  
37:6, 38:9

**Carolyn** [1] - 50:4

**CAROLYN** [2] - 4:5, 50:1

**case** [1] - 27:2

**cash** [11] - 28:11, 32:15, 32:16,  
34:15, 34:18, 35:4, 35:17, 35:18,  
36:9, 36:10, 38:7

**Causeway** [4] - 27:11, 30:9, 37:3,  
37:16

**celebration/party** [1] - 58:11

**cell** [1] - 6:5

**Center** [6] - 1:16, 6:11, 53:1, 59:2,  
59:11, 63:19

**Central** [2] - 71:5, 71:9

**CERTIFICATION** [2] - 75:1, 75:16

**Certified** [1] - 75:14

**certify** [1] - 75:7

**CERTIFYING** [1] - 75:18

**Chair** [4] - 6:13, 9:18, 10:11, 11:4

**CHAIR** [146] - 1:9, 7:10, 7:17, 8:9,  
8:17, 9:1, 9:4, 9:8, 10:1, 10:14,  
11:18, 12:7, 12:10, 12:17, 13:2,  
13:5, 13:14, 13:18, 14:4, 14:12,  
14:16, 14:19, 15:3, 15:7, 16:6,  
16:10, 16:14, 16:18, 17:4, 17:10,

17:15, 17:18, 18:2, 18:6, 19:1,  
19:6, 19:12, 20:1, 21:1, 21:4,  
21:7, 21:10, 21:15, 21:17, 23:7,  
23:13, 23:17, 24:3, 24:8, 24:12,  
24:15, 25:1, 25:4, 25:7, 25:12,  
26:3, 26:12, 26:15, 26:19, 29:3,  
30:3, 30:7, 30:14, 30:18, 31:7,  
32:11, 34:11, 35:8, 37:15, 38:16,  
39:11, 39:18, 40:6, 40:17, 41:2,  
41:8, 41:15, 42:10, 42:19, 43:8,  
44:3, 44:8, 44:17, 45:5, 45:16,  
46:6, 47:2, 47:12, 48:19, 49:4,  
49:12, 49:16, 50:9, 51:4, 51:13,  
52:3, 52:13, 53:5, 53:17, 54:9,  
54:13, 55:2, 55:16, 56:6, 56:10,  
56:14, 56:19, 57:5, 57:9, 58:2,  
58:15, 59:5, 59:14, 59:18, 60:4,  
60:8, 60:11, 61:1, 61:11, 61:19,  
62:8, 62:12, 62:17, 63:8, 64:8,  
64:12, 65:1, 65:3, 66:5, 66:14,  
67:3, 67:14, 68:5, 68:15, 69:7,  
69:12, 70:3, 70:13, 71:3, 71:6,  
72:5, 72:9, 72:17, 73:3, 73:6, 73:8

**change** [10] - 7:5, 7:18, 7:19, 8:4,  
8:11, 9:16, 40:12, 42:6, 65:13,  
74:2

**CHANGE** [6] - 74:4, 74:5, 74:6, 74:7,  
74:8, 74:9

**changed** [1] - 8:12

**changes** [1] - 74:11

**changing** [1] - 41:3

**charge** [3] - 33:19, 35:5, 35:18

**CHARLES** [2] - 3:13, 45:7

**Charles** [2] - 45:9, 69:5

**CHIEF** [15] - 1:10, 21:3, 21:14,  
24:19, 25:11, 32:7, 35:19, 36:4,  
36:7, 38:15, 43:14, 44:6, 45:2,  
65:2, 73:7

**Chief** [2] - 18:8, 18:10

**Chris** [2] - 39:2, 67:17

**CHRIS** [4] - 3:4, 5:4, 39:1, 67:16

**CHRISTOPHER** [36] - 1:11, 8:15, 9:6,  
14:14, 15:5, 18:4, 20:5, 20:12,  
20:16, 21:12, 24:17, 25:9, 31:1,  
32:2, 32:14, 33:5, 33:10, 34:1,  
34:6, 36:11, 36:15, 36:19, 38:4,  
41:13, 43:12, 45:3, 46:4, 49:2,

49:14, 50:11, 64:18, 65:15, 72:3,  
72:11, 72:15, 73:4

Christopher [1] - 6:14

CIFRANO [1] - 7:13

Cifrino [1] - 7:13

CIFRINO [2] - 7:19, 8:14

citizenship [1] - 10:10

CITY [1] - 1:2

clear [1] - 40:18

closed [2] - 40:4, 47:18

Clothing [3] - 22:4, 22:6, 22:17

CLOTHING [4] - 2:9, 2:10, 22:1, 22:2

College [2] - 40:11, 48:8

COLLEGE [2] - 3:7, 40:9

combined [1] - 17:3

coming [4] - 29:14, 34:7, 35:1,  
37:11

COMMERCE [2] - 3:16, 49:6

Commerce [1] - 49:8

Commission [6] - 6:9, 10:18, 40:3,  
42:14, 46:14, 49:9

COMMISSION [3] - 1:1, 1:4, 1:8

Commissioner [3] - 6:14, 9:18, 44:9

COMMISSIONER [36] - 1:11, 8:15, 9:6,  
14:14, 15:5, 18:4, 20:5, 20:12,  
20:16, 21:12, 24:17, 25:9, 31:1,  
32:2, 32:14, 33:5, 33:10, 34:1,  
34:6, 36:11, 36:15, 36:19, 38:4,  
41:13, 43:12, 45:3, 46:4, 49:2,  
49:14, 50:11, 64:18, 65:15, 72:3,  
72:11, 72:15, 73:4

commissioner [1] - 71:7

Commissioners [1] - 6:13

common [2] - 9:14, 15:15

Commonwealth [4] - 12:2, 12:13,  
75:3, 75:6

Company [1] - 49:8

COMPANY [2] - 3:16, 49:6

complainant [2] - 33:16, 33:17

complained [1] - 28:15

complaining [1] - 33:7

complaint [1] - 27:4

complaints [1] - 45:1

completed [1] - 28:17

concert [2] - 61:16, 66:2

concur [1] - 38:15

conditioning [3] - 29:6, 33:2, 33:4

conducted [1] - 33:11

confirm [2] - 13:10, 17:6

confirmed [1] - 13:12

confirming [1] - 46:8

confused [1] - 54:10

continued [1] - 6:16

continuity [1] - 46:8

CONTROL [1] - 75:17

cooler [1] - 16:5

copies [1] - 10:12

copy [5] - 10:9, 10:10, 14:3, 14:11

correct [4] - 16:16, 31:9, 41:7,  
42:3

correction [1] - 74:2

corrections [1] - 74:11

cost [2] - 32:3, 32:5

couple [1] - 19:10

Coyle [1] - 50:4

COYLE [2] - 4:5, 50:1

craziness [1] - 71:18

credit [5] - 28:9, 28:12, 36:1,  
36:5, 38:9

cross [2] - 34:19, 35:12

CRYSTAL [2] - 3:10, 43:3

crystal [1] - 43:5

cuisine [1] - 17:1

cultural [1] - 68:13

customer [2] - 8:8, 35:12

CV [2] - 10:12, 16:16

CVS [1] - 38:2

D

D/B/A [10] - 2:3, 2:5, 2:6, 2:8,  
2:9, 7:1, 9:11, 15:12, 18:14, 22:1

Dan [1] - 44:13

DAN [2] - 3:12, 44:12

dance [1] - 71:2

dancing [1] - 58:9

date [3] - 12:11, 61:9, 74:3

DATE [1] - 1:18

dates [1] - 72:18

days [7] - 15:17, 17:12, 23:2,  
24:12, 24:14, 40:13, 41:18

DCR [1] - 42:17  
decades [1] - 24:7  
decide [1] - 36:9  
decision [1] - 25:18  
defer [2] - 69:9, 69:13  
Delsignore [1] - 54:3  
DELSIGNORE [2] - 4:12, 54:1  
Denekewicz [1] - 42:9  
denied [1] - 55:7  
deny [2] - 55:3, 55:6  
Department [1] - 70:7  
described [1] - 16:1  
desserts [1] - 20:10  
destination [2] - 28:2, 36:13  
detail [8] - 50:10, 51:5, 52:4, 52:14, 53:7, 58:3, 61:2, 68:16  
DeWolfe [1] - 48:14  
diesel [1] - 48:11  
difference [1] - 31:3  
different [7] - 19:18, 20:9, 56:18, 59:19, 60:3, 60:5, 60:10  
Dining [1] - 60:16  
dinners [1] - 68:4  
DIRECT [1] - 75:17  
direct [1] - 33:17  
DIRECTION [1] - 75:18  
DIRECTOR [77] - 1:12, 6:4, 9:12, 15:13, 18:9, 18:15, 22:3, 25:15, 33:14, 39:2, 39:14, 40:2, 40:10, 41:1, 41:6, 41:11, 42:2, 42:13, 43:4, 43:17, 44:13, 45:8, 46:12, 47:7, 48:3, 48:7, 49:7, 50:2, 50:15, 51:8, 51:16, 52:7, 52:17, 53:10, 54:2, 54:11, 54:18, 55:10, 55:19, 56:8, 56:12, 56:17, 57:2, 57:8, 57:19, 58:6, 58:18, 59:8, 59:16, 60:2, 60:6, 60:9, 60:14, 61:5, 61:14, 62:2, 62:11, 62:15, 63:2, 63:11, 64:10, 65:19, 66:8, 66:17, 67:7, 67:17, 68:8, 68:19, 69:10, 69:17, 70:6, 70:16, 71:4, 72:6, 72:13, 73:1, 73:11  
Director [1] - 25:18  
documents [2] - 13:3, 44:4  
DOES [1] - 75:17  
dollar [1] - 28:8

done [3] - 13:12, 19:10, 43:11  
doorman [10] - 27:18, 27:19, 28:13, 29:12, 29:13, 29:14, 31:4, 36:17, 37:10  
down [2] - 37:5  
Downstairs [1] - 39:16  
drink [2] - 39:7, 39:8  
Drive [7] - 48:13, 48:14, 51:19, 52:10, 63:15, 68:12, 69:6  
driver [7] - 27:5, 27:6, 27:13, 27:14, 28:15, 34:13, 38:8  
due [2] - 25:17, 46:15  
dump [1] - 70:11  
during [2] - 8:5, 39:6

## E

easier [1] - 57:10  
East [2] - 39:3, 62:5  
educational [1] - 41:18  
EDWARD [2] - 4:6, 50:14  
Edward [1] - 50:16  
either [1] - 47:15  
electricity [1] - 70:12  
electronic [1] - 48:1  
Elias [1] - 52:17  
ELIAS [2] - 4:10, 52:16  
ELIZABETH [77] - 1:12, 6:4, 9:12, 15:13, 18:9, 18:15, 22:3, 25:15, 33:14, 39:2, 39:14, 40:2, 40:10, 41:1, 41:6, 41:11, 42:2, 42:13, 43:4, 43:17, 44:13, 45:8, 46:12, 47:7, 48:3, 48:7, 49:7, 50:2, 50:15, 51:8, 51:16, 52:7, 52:17, 53:10, 54:2, 54:11, 54:18, 55:10, 55:19, 56:8, 56:12, 56:17, 57:2, 57:8, 57:19, 58:6, 58:18, 59:8, 59:16, 60:2, 60:6, 60:9, 60:14, 61:5, 61:14, 62:2, 62:11, 62:15, 63:2, 63:11, 64:10, 65:19, 66:8, 66:17, 67:7, 67:17, 68:8, 68:19, 69:10, 69:17, 70:6, 70:16, 71:4, 72:6, 72:13, 73:1, 73:11  
Elizabeth [1] - 25:18  
email [3] - 14:1, 14:3, 14:11  
ENA [2] - 4:16, 58:5  
Ena [1] - 58:8

**end** [2] - 13:13, 31:11  
**engine** [1] - 46:15  
**entertainment** [15] - 40:16, 50:3, 50:17, 52:19, 57:14, 58:9, 58:19, 59:9, 60:15, 61:6, 61:15, 62:3, 66:2, 68:11, 70:19  
**ENTERTAINMENT** [2] - 4:3, 49:19  
**entire** [1] - 41:4  
**entrance** [1] - 27:18  
**equipment** [1] - 48:12  
**ERRATA** [1] - 74:1  
**errata** [1] - 74:3  
**especially** [2] - 8:5, 47:16  
**European** [1] - 53:1  
**event** [5] - 50:7, 52:1, 55:14, 59:19, 68:13  
**events** [5] - 39:10, 48:16, 51:3, 58:1, 58:3  
**exactly** [2] - 8:14, 46:3  
**except** [2] - 20:18, 74:11  
**EXECUTIVE** [77] - 1:12, 6:4, 9:12, 15:13, 18:9, 18:15, 22:3, 25:15, 33:14, 39:2, 39:14, 40:2, 40:10, 41:1, 41:6, 41:11, 42:2, 42:13, 43:4, 43:17, 44:13, 45:8, 46:12, 47:7, 48:3, 48:7, 49:7, 50:2, 50:15, 51:8, 51:16, 52:7, 52:17, 53:10, 54:2, 54:11, 54:18, 55:10, 55:19, 56:8, 56:12, 56:17, 57:2, 57:8, 57:19, 58:6, 58:18, 59:8, 59:16, 60:2, 60:6, 60:9, 60:14, 61:5, 61:14, 62:2, 62:11, 62:15, 63:2, 63:11, 64:10, 65:19, 66:8, 66:17, 67:7, 67:17, 68:8, 68:19, 69:10, 69:17, 70:6, 70:16, 71:4, 72:6, 72:13, 73:1, 73:11  
**Executive** [1] - 25:18  
**exercised** [24] - 15:16, 50:5, 50:18, 51:10, 51:18, 52:9, 53:1, 53:13, 54:6, 55:12, 56:3, 63:5, 63:14, 63:19, 64:5, 66:2, 66:10, 66:19, 67:12, 68:2, 68:11, 69:3, 70:9, 70:19  
**existing** [4] - 24:4, 39:5, 42:7, 45:11  
**expect** [1] - 12:11

**Expected** [25] - 50:8, 51:2, 51:12, 52:2, 52:11, 53:4, 53:15, 54:8, 55:15, 56:5, 57:17, 58:13, 59:4, 59:13, 60:18, 61:10, 61:18, 62:6, 63:7, 63:16, 64:2, 64:7, 66:4, 66:12, 67:2  
**expected** [2] - 67:13, 68:4  
**experience** [1] - 27:19  
**EXPERIENCED** [4] - 2:9, 2:9, 21:19, 22:1  
**Experienced** [3] - 22:4, 22:5, 22:17  
**extend** [1] - 45:12  
**extended** [1] - 41:18  
**extension** [5] - 44:15, 54:15, 54:19, 55:4, 55:7

## F

**fact** [2] - 38:7, 71:15  
**facts** [2] - 27:2, 38:14  
**failure** [3] - 43:6, 43:19, 71:10  
**familiar** [1] - 11:19  
**fare** [5] - 27:5, 28:5, 29:1, 33:7, 38:12  
**fares** [1] - 31:9  
**favor** [5] - 8:18, 14:17, 17:16, 21:5, 25:2  
**FAWAZ** [2] - 3:14, 46:11  
**Fawaz** [1] - 46:13  
**February** [1] - 10:18  
**fees** [1] - 43:7  
**Fellows** [1] - 40:11  
**FELLOWS** [2] - 3:7, 40:9  
**FERRER** [146] - 1:9, 7:10, 7:17, 8:9, 8:17, 9:1, 9:4, 9:8, 10:1, 10:14, 11:18, 12:7, 12:10, 12:17, 13:2, 13:5, 13:14, 13:18, 14:4, 14:12, 14:16, 14:19, 15:3, 15:7, 16:6, 16:10, 16:14, 16:18, 17:4, 17:10, 17:15, 17:18, 18:2, 18:6, 19:1, 19:6, 19:12, 20:1, 21:1, 21:4, 21:7, 21:10, 21:15, 21:17, 23:7, 23:13, 23:17, 24:3, 24:8, 24:12, 24:15, 25:1, 25:4, 25:7, 25:12, 26:3, 26:12, 26:15, 26:19, 29:3, 30:3, 30:7, 30:14, 30:18, 31:7, 32:11, 34:11, 35:8, 37:15, 38:16,

39:11, 39:18, 40:6, 40:17, 41:2, 41:8, 41:15, 42:10, 42:19, 43:8, 44:3, 44:8, 44:17, 45:5, 45:16, 46:6, 47:2, 47:12, 48:19, 49:4, 49:12, 49:16, 50:9, 51:4, 51:13, 52:3, 52:13, 53:5, 53:17, 54:9, 54:13, 55:2, 55:16, 56:6, 56:10, 56:14, 56:19, 57:5, 57:9, 58:2, 58:15, 59:5, 59:14, 59:18, 60:4, 60:8, 60:11, 61:1, 61:11, 61:19, 62:8, 62:12, 62:17, 63:8, 64:8, 64:12, 65:1, 65:3, 66:5, 66:14, 67:3, 67:14, 68:5, 68:15, 69:7, 69:12, 70:3, 70:13, 71:3, 71:6, 72:5, 72:9, 72:17, 73:3, 73:6, 73:8

**Ferrer** [1] - 6:14

**few** [2] - 11:5, 63:9

**field** [1] - 11:8

**file** [2] - 39:19, 48:1

**filed** [2] - 43:6, 43:19

**fine** [4] - 25:19, 29:1, 38:6, 38:16

**finer** [1] - 31:8

**fingerprint** [1] - 38:2

**FIRE** [15] - 1:10, 21:3, 21:14, 24:19, 25:11, 32:7, 35:19, 36:4, 36:7, 38:15, 43:14, 44:6, 45:2, 65:2, 73:7

**fire** [2] - 18:8, 50:10

**first** [8] - 6:16, 26:9, 26:16, 27:8, 27:19, 28:1, 45:18, 64:14

**First** [1] - 35:13

**fix** [1] - 13:8

**floor** [4] - 16:2, 45:17, 45:19, 46:7

**flower** [1] - 19:8

**folk** [1] - 71:1

**food** [3] - 39:7, 39:8, 47:3

**football** [2] - 8:6, 8:7

**foregoing** [1] - 74:11

**FOREGOING** [1] - 75:16

**forever** [1] - 23:4

**FORM** [2] - 3:8, 42:5

**Form** [3] - 14:8, 42:6, 42:9

**formatted** [1] - 57:3

**forth** [1] - 75:8

**forward** [3] - 14:3, 14:5, 65:14

**four** [2] - 11:2, 56:13

**Fran** [2] - 33:18, 34:8

**French** [1] - 17:2

**Friday** [4] - 8:1, 40:13, 40:18, 56:15

**front** [1] - 27:18

**full** [2] - 33:1, 33:4

**fundraiser** [1] - 52:11

g

**GABRIEL** [2] - 4:12, 54:1

**Gabriel** [1] - 54:3

**Galluccio** [4] - 10:4, 10:5, 12:5, 12:18

**GALLUCCIO** [11] - 9:17, 10:3, 10:6, 10:16, 13:1, 13:4, 13:11, 13:16, 14:1, 14:9, 15:8

**games** [1] - 8:7

**GAR10067** [1] - 42:8

**garage** [1] - 42:7

**Garden** [6] - 30:11, 32:7, 32:8, 32:9, 37:4, 37:19

**gardens** [1] - 54:12

**general** [3] - 11:10, 11:14, 11:16

**generator** [1] - 48:11

**GEORGE** [2] - 3:10, 43:3

**George** [1] - 43:5

**Gerald** [1] - 18:8

**GERALD** [15] - 1:10, 21:3, 21:14, 24:19, 25:11, 32:7, 35:19, 36:4, 36:7, 38:15, 43:14, 44:6, 45:2, 65:2, 73:7

**given** [1] - 38:14

**goods** [3] - 22:7, 22:15, 69:4

**Gorham** [1] - 67:9

**grade** [1] - 16:4

**Graham** [1] - 58:11

**Grande** [1] - 16:17

**grant** [7] - 9:5, 18:3, 21:11, 25:8, 44:19, 49:1, 49:13

**Granted** [1] - 70:13

**granted** [39] - 9:8, 15:7, 18:5, 18:6, 21:15, 25:12, 39:11, 42:10, 45:5, 46:6, 49:4, 49:12, 49:16, 50:9, 51:4, 51:13, 52:13, 53:6, 53:17, 55:16, 58:3, 58:15, 59:5,

60:11, 61:1, 61:11, 61:19, 62:12,  
65:12, 66:5, 66:14, 67:3, 67:14,  
68:5, 68:15, 70:3, 71:3, 73:10

Granville [1] - 61:7

Griffin [1] - 44:14

GRIFFIN [2] - 3:12, 44:12

Grill [1] - 39:3

Ground [1] - 16:2

guest [11] - 27:8, 27:11, 27:16,  
27:17, 28:1, 28:7, 28:11, 28:14,  
33:8, 34:14

guy [3] - 31:16, 31:17, 31:18

guys [2] - 19:14, 21:16

## H

H-U-N-N-E-W-E-L-L [1] - 22:10

Hackney [3] - 25:16, 27:4, 28:19

HACKNEY [2] - 2:11, 25:14

hackney [1] - 25:17

hall [4] - 59:19, 60:5, 60:7

Hall [1] - 60:16

hand [2] - 22:6, 75:11

happy [1] - 45:18

Harlow [1] - 54:3

HARVARD [2] - 3:7, 40:9

Harvard [4] - 11:13, 40:11, 57:16

Harvard's [1] - 54:19

Harvard's [1] - 53:11

Harvest [1] - 11:14

Hat [1] - 67:10

head [2] - 34:9, 69:5

heard [2] - 44:1, 46:17

HEARING [2] - 1:1, 1:4

Hearing [1] - 73:13

hearing [5] - 18:11, 46:17, 71:9,  
71:17, 75:8

HEATH [2] - 5:7, 69:16

heath [1] - 69:17

held [1] - 43:10

Helene [1] - 55:11

HELENE [2] - 4:13, 55:9

hereby [2] - 74:12, 75:6

herein [1] - 75:8

hereunto [1] - 75:10

High [1] - 67:18

Hilles [2] - 59:2, 59:11

history [1] - 11:6

holder [7] - 7:3, 9:14, 11:11,  
25:16, 46:13, 53:12, 54:4

holding [1] - 42:15

Holly [1] - 70:7

HOLLY [2] - 5:8, 70:5

Holyoke [1] - 60:17

hopefully [3] - 13:9, 13:15, 17:9

hot [1] - 33:2

Hotel [8] - 27:6, 28:6, 29:2, 30:8,  
32:4, 33:9, 33:17, 34:10

hotel [3] - 11:12, 27:9, 28:3

hours [4] - 7:6, 7:18, 24:9, 40:12

house [1] - 20:11

House [2] - 60:16, 64:5

housekeeping [1] - 10:8

HUNNEWELL [4] - 22:9, 22:14, 24:1,  
24:5

Hunnewell [1] - 22:10

hyphenated [3] - 23:14, 23:16, 23:18

## I

identified [3] - 27:7, 27:15, 28:13

IN [3] - 1:4, 75:10, 75:17

in-house [1] - 20:11

Inc [4] - 7:2, 15:14, 39:15, 49:11

INC [7] - 1:22, 2:3, 2:6, 3:5, 6:19,  
15:11, 39:13

inclined [1] - 46:2

include [1] - 45:13

including [1] - 16:3

INDEX [4] - 2:1, 3:1, 4:1, 5:1

indications [1] - 38:11

indulge [1] - 11:5

information [3] - 71:10, 71:13,  
71:16

initial [2] - 41:14

Inn [1] - 43:18

inoperable [1] - 46:15

inquiry [1] - 14:11

insane [1] - 57:10

inside [3] - 15:19, 27:9, 28:7

inspected [3] - 46:19, 47:8, 47:9

inspection [1] - 23:10

<p><u>instead</u> [1] - 28:11</p> <p><u>INSTRUCTIONS</u> [1] - 74:2</p> <p><u>International</u> [2] - 55:12, 56:16</p> <p><u>investigation</u> [2] - 28:18, 33:11</p> <p><u>investigator</u> [2] - 14:2, 14:10</p> <p><u>investigators</u> [1] - 46:2</p> <p><u>ISAACS</u> [2] - 4:13, 55:9</p> <p><u>Isaacs</u> [2] - 55:11, 56:16</p> <p><u>issuance</u> [1] - 22:15</p> <p><u>issue</u> [5] - 28:8, 38:9, 38:10, 45:17, 45:18</p> <p><u>issued</u> [2] - 25:19, 29:1</p> <p><u>issues</u> [2] - 44:19, 46:16</p> <p><u>issuing</u> [1] - 38:13</p> <p><u>Italian</u> [1] - 17:2</p> <p><u>items</u> [1] - 20:6</p> <p><u>IVAN</u> [4] - 11:9, 12:4, 12:9, 12:16</p> <p><u>Ivan</u> [3] - 9:16, 11:3, 11:5</p> <p><u>Ivan's</u> [2] - 10:11, 10:12</p>	<p><u>KANITH</u> [1] - 25:14</p> <p><u>keep</u> [1] - 62:14</p> <p><u>Kendall</u> [2] - 45:14, 62:5</p> <p><u>Kevin</u> [3] - 10:18, 11:15, 13:17</p> <p><u>Kevin's</u> [1] - 10:19</p> <p><u>kicked</u> [1] - 14:6</p> <p><u>Kirkland</u> [1] - 53:2</p> <p><u>kitchen</u> [1] - 16:4</p> <p><u>knowing</u> [1] - 28:16</p> <p><u>knows</u> [1] - 27:16</p> <p><u>Kosinski</u> [1] - 39:3</p> <p><u>KOSINSKI</u> [2] - 3:4, 39:1</p> <p><u>Kourafas</u> [2] - 75:5, 75:13</p> <p><u>KRIS</u> [2] - 4:21, 62:1</p> <p><u>Kris</u> [1] - 62:2</p> <p><u>KUMAR</u> [2] - 4:18, 60:13</p> <p><u>Kumar</u> [1] - 60:15</p> <p><u>KYANN</u> [2] - 4:19, 61:4</p> <p><u>KyAnn</u> [1] - 61:6</p>
<u>J</u>	<u>L</u>
<p><u>jackhammers</u> [1] - 70:10</p> <p><u>Jean</u> [3] - 27:15, 28:10, 34:12</p> <p><u>Jean's</u> [1] - 28:3</p> <p><u>Jeff</u> [1] - 48:7</p> <p><u>JEFF</u> [2] - 3:15, 48:6</p> <p><u>Jerry</u> [1] - 11:1</p> <p><u>JFK</u> [2] - 66:3, 69:5</p> <p><u>JFK/Mt</u> [1] - 53:13</p> <p><u>Jill</u> [2] - 75:5, 75:13</p> <p><u>John</u> [2] - 53:11, 54:19</p>	<p><u>Laboratoire</u> [1] - 62:4</p> <p><u>lady</u> [2] - 29:5, 36:14</p> <p><u>Larosa</u> [1] - 48:17</p> <p><u>last</u> [11] - 16:12, 26:9, 26:11, 26:14, 26:18, 44:5, 44:10, 46:17, 57:1, 71:9, 72:6</p> <p><u>law</u> [2] - 8:10, 8:12</p> <p><u>LAW</u> [4] - 11:9, 12:4, 12:9, 12:16</p> <p><u>Law</u> [3] - 9:16, 11:4, 40:12</p> <p><u>laws</u> [2] - 12:1, 12:13</p> <p><u>LAY</u> [2] - 5:6, 68:18</p> <p><u>Lay</u> [1] - 69:1</p> <p><u>Le</u> [1] - 62:4</p> <p><u>learned</u> [1] - 19:13</p> <p><u>least</u> [1] - 72:7</p> <p><u>leave</u> [1] - 59:17</p> <p><u>left</u> [7] - 28:2, 29:11, 29:12, 30:12, 31:13, 33:1, 37:8</p> <p><u>Legion</u> [1] - 42:16</p> <p><u>less</u> [1] - 35:10</p> <p><u>letter</u> [1] - 13:19</p> <p><u>licence</u> [1] - 70:19</p> <p><u>LICENSE</u> [3] - 1:1, 1:4, 1:8</p> <p><u>License</u> [6] - 6:9, 40:3, 46:13,</p>
<u>K</u>	
<p><u>K-A-I-N-T-H</u> [1] - 26:18</p> <p><u>KAILEY</u> [3] - 4:14, 55:18, 63:1</p> <p><u>Kailey</u> [8] - 56:1, 56:9, 56:15, 62:17, 63:3, 63:12, 63:17, 64:3</p> <p><u>Kainth</u> [7] - 25:16, 27:7, 27:12, 27:16, 28:4, 29:1, 29:4</p> <p><u>KAINTH</u> [22] - 2:11, 26:14, 26:17, 29:5, 30:5, 30:10, 30:16, 31:3, 31:10, 32:6, 32:8, 32:13, 32:16, 34:16, 35:11, 36:2, 36:6, 36:10, 36:14, 36:17, 37:3, 37:18</p> <p><u>Kainth's</u> [1] - 27:9</p>	

46:14, 49:9, 75:14  
license [53] - 7:4, 8:2, 9:15,  
 11:12, 15:16, 18:18, 22:7, 22:15,  
 23:3, 25:17, 39:5, 39:19, 42:7,  
 43:7, 44:1, 45:11, 46:18, 47:19,  
 50:5, 50:17, 51:9, 51:18, 52:8,  
 52:18, 53:6, 53:12, 53:13, 54:5,  
 54:14, 54:16, 55:11, 56:2, 57:14,  
 58:9, 59:1, 59:10, 60:16, 61:7,  
 61:15, 62:3, 63:4, 63:13, 63:18,  
 64:4, 66:1, 66:9, 66:18, 67:11,  
 68:1, 68:11, 69:2, 69:19  
LICENSES [2] - 4:3, 49:18  
licenses [2] - 11:7, 50:3  
Lillian [1] - 42:8  
line [2] - 12:18, 27:14  
LINE [1] - 74:4  
Linga [1] - 61:15  
LINGA [2] - 4:20, 61:13  
Linnaean [1] - 58:12  
Lint [1] - 25:19  
LINT [77] - 1:12, 6:4, 9:12, 15:13,  
 18:9, 18:15, 22:3, 25:15, 33:14,  
 39:2, 39:14, 40:2, 40:10, 41:1,  
 41:6, 41:11, 42:2, 42:13, 43:4,  
 43:17, 44:13, 45:8, 46:12, 47:7,  
 48:3, 48:7, 49:7, 50:2, 50:15,  
 51:8, 51:16, 52:7, 52:17, 53:10,  
 54:2, 54:11, 54:18, 55:10, 55:19,  
 56:8, 56:12, 56:17, 57:2, 57:8,  
 57:19, 58:6, 58:18, 59:8, 59:16,  
 60:2, 60:6, 60:9, 60:14, 61:5,  
 61:14, 62:2, 62:11, 62:15, 63:2,  
 63:11, 64:10, 65:19, 66:8, 66:17,  
 67:7, 67:17, 68:8, 68:19, 69:10,  
 69:17, 70:6, 70:16, 71:4, 72:6,  
 72:13, 73:1, 73:11  
liquor [1] - 11:11  
Liquors [1] - 7:3  
LIQUORS [2] - 2:3, 7:1  
LLC [10] - 2:4, 2:9, 3:8, 9:10,  
 9:13, 22:1, 22:5, 42:5, 42:6, 42:9  
local [1] - 10:18  
located [4] - 22:17, 27:10, 67:10,  
 67:19  
location [5] - 16:15, 27:12, 27:16,

28:16, 54:17  
looking [1] - 10:9  
lost [1] - 57:4  
Lowell [1] - 60:16  
lunch [1] - 20:9  
luncheon [1] - 63:18

M

MacLean [3] - 3:15, 48:6, 48:8  
Madam [2] - 9:18, 10:11  
mail [1] - 23:11  
Main [2] - 51:10, 66:19  
MALT [2] - 4:3, 49:18  
malt [19] - 50:2, 50:4, 50:16, 51:9,  
 51:17, 52:8, 52:18, 53:6, 53:13,  
 54:5, 56:1, 63:3, 63:12, 63:17,  
 64:3, 66:1, 66:9, 66:18, 67:11  
manage [1] - 11:10  
manager [7] - 9:16, 9:19, 11:4,  
 11:10, 11:14, 11:16, 16:1  
managerial [1] - 10:19  
managing [2] - 11:6, 11:7  
manholes [1] - 44:18  
Manley [1] - 57:13  
MANLEY [2] - 4:15, 57:12  
marc [1] - 43:17  
MARC [2] - 3:11, 43:16  
Marianna [2] - 22:4, 22:11  
MARIANNA [9] - 2:9, 21:19, 22:12,  
 23:12, 23:15, 23:19, 24:10, 24:14  
Mark [1] - 61:14  
MARK [2] - 4:20, 61:13  
MARKET [2] - 3:6, 40:1  
Market [1] - 40:4  
Marquardt [1] - 45:9  
MARQUARDT [2] - 3:13, 45:7  
Marsh [1] - 42:16  
MARTIN [2] - 5:4, 67:16  
Martin [1] - 67:18  
Mass [3] - 22:17, 48:4, 48:12  
Massachusetts [12] - 1:16, 1:17,  
 6:12, 7:5, 12:2, 12:14, 15:17,  
 22:7, 50:6, 66:11, 75:3, 75:6  
Master [1] - 29:16  
MasterCard [3] - 29:9, 32:17, 35:14

**Matignon** [3] - 55:13, 67:18, 67:19  
**matter** [2] - 6:16, 10:8  
**MATTERS** [6] - 2:1, 3:1, 3:3, 4:2, 5:2, 38:19  
**mean** [3] - 31:4, 40:18, 54:15  
**Medallion** [6] - 27:5, 27:6, 27:13, 27:14, 34:13, 49:10  
**meeting** [1] - 6:7  
**MEMBERS** [1] - 1:8  
**Memorial** [8] - 48:13, 48:14, 51:19, 52:9, 52:10, 63:14, 68:12, 69:5  
**menu** [2] - 20:7, 20:8  
**meter** [1] - 30:5  
**midnight** [2] - 65:9, 71:1  
**Mikula** [1] - 28:14  
**military** [1] - 30:19  
**mind** [1] - 27:1  
**minimum** [17] - 28:8, 29:16, 29:19, 30:2, 30:4, 30:6, 30:11, 31:12, 31:18, 32:18, 35:10, 35:11, 36:1, 36:3, 36:4, 37:12, 38:9  
**Minimum** [3] - 29:10, 30:1, 37:6  
**minute** [1] - 67:8  
**minutes** [2] - 13:7, 72:7  
**miscommunications** [1] - 71:17  
**MIT** [8] - 44:14, 44:18, 50:5, 51:18, 52:9, 61:16, 68:10, 70:17  
**mobile** [1] - 47:3  
**Modubvonwu** [2] - 58:19, 59:9  
**MODUBVONWU** [3] - 4:17, 58:17, 59:7  
**MOHAMMED** [2] - 5:9, 70:15  
**Mohammed** [1] - 70:17  
**Monday** [8] - 7:6, 7:8, 8:1, 8:3, 20:2, 40:13, 40:18  
**Mondays** [1] - 18:18  
**month** [1] - 12:6  
**Moroccan** [1] - 17:2  
**most** [1] - 11:9  
**motion** [1] - 73:8  
**move** [1] - 62:13  
**moved** [1] - 49:3  
**Movie** [1] - 48:8  
**Mt** [2] - 48:13, 48:15  
**Murati** [1] - 6:14  
**MURATI** [146] - 1:9, 7:10, 7:17, 8:9,

8:17, 9:1, 9:4, 9:8, 10:1, 10:14, 11:18, 12:7, 12:10, 12:17, 13:2, 13:5, 13:14, 13:18, 14:4, 14:12, 14:16, 14:19, 15:3, 15:7, 16:6, 16:10, 16:14, 16:18, 17:4, 17:10, 17:15, 17:18, 18:2, 18:6, 19:1, 19:6, 19:12, 20:1, 21:1, 21:4, 21:7, 21:10, 21:15, 21:17, 23:7, 23:13, 23:17, 24:3, 24:8, 24:12, 24:15, 25:1, 25:4, 25:7, 25:12, 26:3, 26:12, 26:15, 26:19, 29:3, 30:3, 30:7, 30:14, 30:18, 31:7, 32:11, 34:11, 35:8, 37:15, 38:16, 39:11, 39:18, 40:6, 40:17, 41:2, 41:8, 41:15, 42:10, 42:19, 43:8, 44:3, 44:8, 44:17, 45:5, 45:16, 46:6, 47:2, 47:12, 48:19, 49:4, 49:12, 49:16, 50:9, 51:4, 51:13, 52:3, 52:13, 53:5, 53:17, 54:9, 54:13, 55:2, 55:16, 56:6, 56:10, 56:14, 56:19, 57:5, 57:9, 58:2, 58:15, 59:5, 59:14, 59:18, 60:4, 60:8, 60:11, 61:1, 61:11, 61:19, 62:8, 62:12, 62:17, 63:8, 64:8, 64:12, 65:1, 65:3, 66:5, 66:14, 67:3, 67:14, 68:5, 68:15, 69:7, 69:12, 70:3, 70:13, 71:3, 71:6, 72:5, 72:9, 72:17, 73:3, 73:6, 73:8  
**Murphy** [1] - 10:18  
**Murphy's** [2] - 11:15, 13:17  
**Museum** [1] - 50:5  
**music** [4] - 50:18, 52:19, 57:14, 58:10  
**must** [1] - 19:13

**N**

**name** [16] - 7:13, 7:15, 10:2, 16:7, 16:12, 19:2, 19:4, 22:9, 26:9, 26:11, 26:13, 26:14, 26:16, 26:18, 60:1  
**names** [2] - 7:12, 26:5  
**near** [3] - 30:10, 37:4, 69:5  
**need** [3] - 7:18, 10:13, 69:12  
**needed** [1] - 8:10  
**networking** [2] - 50:7, 52:1  
**never** [1] - 37:15  
**new** [3] - 15:15, 23:1, 71:19

**News** [1] - 48:12  
**next** [6] - 12:6, 17:9, 29:13, 37:8, 37:9  
**Nicolas** [1] - 27:15  
**Nicole** [1] - 6:14  
**NICOLE** [146] - 1:9, 7:10, 7:17, 8:9, 8:17, 9:1, 9:4, 9:8, 10:1, 10:14, 11:18, 12:7, 12:10, 12:17, 13:2, 13:5, 13:14, 13:18, 14:4, 14:12, 14:16, 14:19, 15:3, 15:7, 16:6, 16:10, 16:14, 16:18, 17:4, 17:10, 17:15, 17:18, 18:2, 18:6, 19:1, 19:6, 19:12, 20:1, 21:1, 21:4, 21:7, 21:10, 21:15, 21:17, 23:7, 23:13, 23:17, 24:3, 24:8, 24:12, 24:15, 25:1, 25:4, 25:7, 25:12, 26:3, 26:12, 26:15, 26:19, 29:3, 30:3, 30:7, 30:14, 30:18, 31:7, 32:11, 34:11, 35:8, 37:15, 38:16, 39:11, 39:18, 40:6, 40:17, 41:2, 41:8, 41:15, 42:10, 42:19, 43:8, 44:3, 44:8, 44:17, 45:5, 45:16, 46:6, 47:2, 47:12, 48:19, 49:4, 49:12, 49:16, 50:9, 51:4, 51:13, 52:3, 52:13, 53:5, 53:17, 54:9, 54:13, 55:2, 55:16, 56:6, 56:10, 56:14, 56:19, 57:5, 57:9, 58:2, 58:15, 59:5, 59:14, 59:18, 60:4, 60:8, 60:11, 61:1, 61:11, 61:19, 62:8, 62:12, 62:17, 63:8, 64:8, 64:12, 65:1, 65:3, 66:5, 66:14, 67:3, 67:14, 68:5, 68:15, 69:7, 69:12, 70:3, 70:13, 71:3, 71:6, 72:5, 72:9, 72:17, 73:3, 73:6, 73:8  
**NIGHT** [2] - 3:6, 40:1  
**Night** [1] - 40:3  
**nine** [1] - 20:9  
**noise** [3] - 44:15, 48:9, 70:8  
**none** [2] - 8:16, 14:15  
**nonprofit** [1] - 67:19  
**noon** [3] - 8:5, 64:1, 64:16  
**Norfolk** [2] - 42:8, 75:4  
**north** [1] - 17:1  
**North** [1] - 38:3  
**NOT** [1] - 75:17  
**Notary** [2] - 75:5, 75:15

**note** [6] - 8:9, 23:8, 23:9, 34:11, 48:1, 74:2  
**noted** [1] - 74:11  
**notes** [1] - 57:6  
**nothing** [1] - 21:3  
**notice** [2] - 8:11, 40:3  
**noticed** [1] - 20:2  
**notified** [5] - 39:16, 42:14, 42:18, 46:14, 49:9  
**November** [1] - 45:12  
**number** [6] - 19:18, 23:2, 31:15, 37:10, 37:14

o

**O'CONNOR** [2] - 4:6, 50:14  
**O'Neil** [2] - 27:10, 32:4  
**obtained** [1] - 42:17  
**obviously** [2] - 47:18, 58:1  
**occasion** [1] - 34:2  
**October** [23] - 39:5, 40:4, 44:16, 45:12, 48:10, 55:3, 64:9, 64:11, 64:13, 64:14, 68:2, 69:3, 69:14, 70:1, 70:2, 70:9, 71:1, 75:11  
**OF** [10] - 1:2, 2:1, 3:1, 3:7, 4:1, 5:1, 40:9, 75:16, 75:17, 75:18  
**offer** [2] - 32:15, 32:16  
**office** [3] - 13:12, 37:19, 38:2  
**Officer** [4] - 25:19, 28:17, 33:11, 34:2  
**officer** [7] - 26:6, 26:8, 27:1, 28:4, 28:10, 33:6, 38:14  
**OFFICER** [8] - 26:7, 26:10, 27:3, 33:8, 33:13, 33:16, 34:4, 34:8  
**OFFICIAL** [1] - 1:23  
**Oktoberfest** [4] - 53:3, 53:15, 54:8, 57:16  
**on-line** [1] - 12:18  
**one** [27] - 16:2, 23:14, 32:6, 34:13, 39:4, 41:19, 43:10, 45:10, 54:14, 55:6, 56:6, 56:11, 57:1, 59:17, 64:8, 64:13, 64:15, 65:4, 65:6, 65:12, 65:13, 67:11, 68:1, 68:11, 70:18, 71:14  
**one-day** [7] - 39:4, 54:14, 55:6, 67:11, 68:1, 68:11, 70:18  
**one-story** [1] - 16:2

ones [1] - 57:3  
ons [1] - 67:8  
Oona's [2] - 22:5, 22:16  
OONA'S [2] - 2:9, 22:1  
open [6] - 8:2, 8:5, 8:12, 13:6,  
 15:17, 17:11  
operated [1] - 22:19  
operating [3] - 39:17, 47:1, 48:4  
operation [2] - 24:9, 40:13  
operator [1] - 23:5  
opposition [5] - 9:2, 15:1, 17:19,  
 21:8, 25:5  
OR [2] - 4:3, 49:18  
order [1] - 62:14  
Organization [3] - 59:1, 59:10,  
 70:18  
otherwise [1] - 57:10  
outside [3] - 8:7, 17:7, 39:6  
owner [2] - 23:1, 69:8  
ownership [1] - 42:7  
O' Connor [1] - 50:16

P

P-E-A-S-E [1] - 22:13  
p.m [73] - 1:19, 6:2, 6:11, 7:6,  
 7:7, 7:8, 7:9, 15:18, 17:11, 18:19,  
 20:3, 39:6, 40:14, 40:19, 48:11,  
 50:7, 51:1, 51:11, 52:1, 52:11,  
 53:3, 53:15, 54:7, 55:14, 56:4,  
 57:17, 58:13, 59:3, 59:4, 59:12,  
 60:10, 60:18, 61:9, 61:10, 61:17,  
 61:18, 62:6, 63:6, 63:15, 63:16,  
 64:1, 64:14, 65:6, 65:8, 66:3,  
 66:4, 66:12, 67:1, 67:2, 68:3,  
 68:13, 69:4, 70:10, 71:1  
package [1] - 7:4  
PAGE [5] - 2:1, 3:1, 4:2, 5:2, 74:4  
paid [5] - 28:11, 34:14, 38:7,  
 38:10, 43:7  
paper [1] - 44:10  
Park [1] - 50:19  
Parking [1] - 48:18  
PARKINGWAY [2] - 2:3, 6:19  
Parkingway [1] - 7:2  
Parks [1] - 58:11

PARRAVANO [2] - 4:9, 52:6  
Parravano [1] - 52:8  
Parsnip [3] - 9:14, 11:4, 11:17  
PARSNIP [2] - 2:5, 9:11  
participants [1] - 68:14  
PARTIES [1] - 26:2  
partner [1] - 10:5  
Party [1] - 69:18  
party [10] - 33:7, 49:8, 53:3,  
 59:10, 60:16, 61:7, 62:4, 62:10,  
 67:13, 71:2  
passed [1] - 11:1  
passenger [1] - 34:3  
passing [1] - 11:15  
passport [2] - 10:11, 37:19  
past [3] - 19:11, 43:11, 44:7  
patio [2] - 39:6, 39:9  
patrons [1] - 58:9  
Patrons [1] - 39:8  
PAUL [2] - 4:9, 52:6  
Paul [1] - 52:7  
pay [11] - 29:18, 30:6, 30:11,  
 32:15, 34:17, 35:6, 35:10, 35:17,  
 35:18, 36:9, 36:10  
Peace [2] - 58:18, 59:8  
PEACE [3] - 4:17, 58:17, 59:7  
Pease [2] - 22:11, 23:1  
PEASE [6] - 22:12, 23:12, 23:15,  
 23:19, 24:10, 24:14  
PED10049 [1] - 46:14  
Peddler [1] - 46:13  
pending [1] - 69:8  
people [31] - 8:6, 31:17, 34:16,  
 35:1, 35:2, 35:10, 50:8, 51:2,  
 51:12, 52:2, 52:12, 53:4, 53:16,  
 54:8, 55:15, 56:5, 57:18, 58:14,  
 59:4, 59:13, 60:19, 61:10, 61:18,  
 62:7, 63:7, 63:16, 64:2, 64:7,  
 66:4, 66:13, 67:2  
per [1] - 15:17  
permission [2] - 69:8, 69:13  
permit [2] - 39:10, 62:10  
permits [1] - 42:17  
person [1] - 56:18  
personal [1] - 23:4

**Pertler** [3] - 51:9, 66:9, 66:18  
**PERTLER** [4] - 4:7, 51:7, 66:7, 66:16  
**petition** [10] - 8:18, 9:2, 14:17, 15:1, 17:16, 17:19, 21:5, 21:8, 25:2, 25:5  
**phone** [1] - 6:5  
**phonetic** [6] - 5:5, 11:1, 33:18, 67:4, 68:7, 70:15  
**photocopy** [1] - 59:15  
**pickles** [1] - 20:19  
**Place** [2] - 50:19, 60:17  
**place** [2] - 23:4, 62:9  
**plan** [4] - 12:6, 45:18, 45:19, 46:7  
**playground** [1] - 58:12  
**plaza** [1] - 45:13  
**pleasure** [1] - 71:7  
**plus** [1] - 33:1  
**Plympton** [2] - 48:13, 64:5  
**point** [3] - 10:17, 14:6, 47:13  
**Police** [2] - 42:17, 42:18  
**police** [8] - 50:10, 51:5, 52:3, 52:14, 53:6, 58:3, 61:2, 68:16  
**POLICE** [36] - 1:11, 8:15, 9:6, 14:14, 15:5, 18:4, 20:5, 20:12, 20:16, 21:12, 24:17, 25:9, 31:1, 32:2, 32:14, 33:5, 33:10, 34:1, 34:6, 36:11, 36:15, 36:19, 38:4, 41:13, 43:12, 45:3, 46:4, 49:2, 49:14, 50:11, 64:18, 65:15, 72:3, 72:11, 72:15, 73:4  
**Porter** [1] - 43:5  
**Portland** [1] - 38:1  
**Post** [1] - 42:16  
**Premise** [1] - 16:1  
**premise** [1] - 45:13  
**premises** [2] - 55:7, 69:9  
**prep** [1] - 16:4  
**PRESIDENT** [2] - 3:7, 40:9  
**President** [1] - 40:11  
**previous** [2] - 11:6, 23:4  
**previously** [1] - 41:9  
**PRICE** [2] - 4:21, 62:1  
**Price** [1] - 62:3  
**private** [1] - 62:9  
**Priyanka** [1] - 60:15

**PRIYANKA** [2] - 4:18, 60:13  
**problem** [6] - 31:4, 31:11, 32:18, 35:3, 35:15, 37:14  
**proceedings** [1] - 75:9  
**process** [1] - 42:1  
**program** [1] - 19:17  
**programs** [1] - 19:18  
**Proof** [1] - 12:8  
**proof** [1] - 10:10  
**property** [1] - 44:18  
**propose** [1] - 11:3  
**proposed** [2] - 9:19, 16:1  
**provide** [2] - 71:10, 71:15  
**Psychic** [1] - 43:6  
**Pub** [1] - 40:12  
**Public** [2] - 75:5, 75:15  
**pulled** [1] - 24:1  
**pumps** [1] - 70:12  
**purchased** [1] - 49:10  
**put** [3] - 33:1, 33:4, 41:17

## Q

**Quantum** [1] - 51:17  
**QUANTUM** [2] - 4:8, 51:15  
**que** [1] - 13:6  
**questions** [2] - 24:18, 24:19  
**Quincy** [2] - 63:19, 64:5

## R

**R-A-D-J-E-B** [1] - 16:13  
**race** [1] - 51:2  
**Radjeb** [2] - 15:19, 16:9  
**RADJEB** [7] - 16:9, 16:12, 16:17, 17:1, 17:8, 17:13, 18:7  
**rain** [1] - 61:9  
**RE** [1] - 1:4  
**read** [4] - 57:6, 63:10, 64:8, 74:11  
**reading** [1] - 74:2  
**REARDON** [15] - 1:10, 21:3, 21:14, 24:19, 25:11, 32:7, 35:19, 36:4, 36:7, 38:15, 43:14, 44:6, 45:2, 65:2, 73:7  
**Reardon** [3] - 18:8, 18:10, 71:7  
**reason** [2] - 8:4, 74:2  
**REASON** [6] - 74:5, 74:6, 74:7, 74:8,

74:9, 74:10  
**REBECCA** [2] - 5:6, 68:18  
**Rebecca** [1] - 69:1  
**received** [4] - 27:4, 31:8, 40:3, 44:19  
**receiving** [1] - 23:11  
**recently** [2] - 11:9, 19:13  
**reception** [6] - 51:12, 56:2, 63:4, 63:13, 66:10, 66:19  
**recollection** [1] - 10:17  
**recommend** [1] - 38:6  
**record** [17] - 7:12, 8:10, 10:2, 11:11, 16:1, 16:8, 16:11, 18:10, 19:3, 23:8, 26:6, 34:12, 41:9, 43:9, 64:13, 74:12, 75:9  
**RECORD** [1] - 1:23  
**recorded/live** [4] - 50:17, 52:19, 57:14, 58:10  
**refusal** [2] - 27:5, 29:1  
**refuse** [1] - 28:5  
**refused** [1] - 38:12  
**refusing** [1] - 31:8  
**regard** [5] - 12:2, 12:14, 22:16, 47:15, 47:16  
**registered** [1] - 67:19  
**regulations** [4] - 12:1, 12:12, 28:19, 46:9  
**reissuance** [1] - 23:5  
**renew** [5] - 43:7, 43:19, 47:4, 47:5, 47:8  
**renewed** [2] - 47:10, 47:11  
**repeatedly** [1] - 13:12  
**REPORTER** [2] - 26:8, 75:18  
**Reporter** [1] - 75:14  
**REPORTERS** [1] - 1:22  
**REPRODUCTION** [1] - 75:17  
**requested** [6] - 14:2, 40:12, 42:6, 44:14, 53:6, 71:11  
**requesting** [1] - 54:10  
**required** [7] - 51:5, 52:4, 52:14, 53:7, 58:3, 61:2, 68:16  
**RESPECT** [1] - 75:17  
**response** [11] - 8:19, 9:3, 14:11, 14:18, 15:2, 17:17, 18:1, 21:6, 21:9, 25:3, 25:6

**restating** [1] - 27:1  
**restaurant** [4] - 11:7, 47:16, 48:4, 54:4  
**resubmit** [1] - 55:5  
**retail** [2] - 16:2, 24:4  
**returned** [1] - 27:17  
**reunion** [6] - 56:2, 63:4, 63:13, 63:18, 64:4, 68:3  
**Reveiros** [1] - 34:8  
**Reverios** [1] - 33:18  
**reviewed** [3] - 72:7, 72:17, 72:19  
**revoke** [2] - 72:1  
**Rialto** [1] - 11:10  
**Ribfest** [1] - 39:7  
**ride** [1] - 28:12  
**RIEU** [2] - 4:13, 55:9  
**Rieu** [1] - 55:11  
**RIEU-ISAACS** [2] - 4:13, 55:9  
**Rieu-Isaacs** [1] - 55:11  
**RJ** [3] - 5:8, 70:5, 70:6  
**road** [1] - 51:2  
**Road** [3] - 55:13, 61:7, 67:19  
**Rogers** [1] - 18:18  
**Royal** [7] - 27:6, 28:6, 29:2, 30:8, 32:4, 33:9, 34:9  
**RUBIEH** [2] - 3:14, 46:11  
**Rubieh** [1] - 46:13  
**rules** [3] - 11:19, 12:12, 28:19  
**run** [1] - 48:11

s

**Saint** [4] - 27:15, 28:3, 28:10, 34:12  
**Saint-Jean** [3] - 27:15, 28:10, 34:12  
**Saint-Jean's** [1] - 28:3  
**sale** [2] - 12:3, 12:14  
**Sam** [2] - 18:16, 19:4  
**SAM** [11] - 2:7, 18:13, 19:4, 19:5, 19:10, 19:16, 20:4, 20:8, 20:14, 20:18, 21:16  
**SAME** [1] - 75:17  
**sandwiches** [1] - 20:9  
**Saturday** [12] - 7:7, 7:8, 8:2, 8:3, 40:15, 41:3, 41:4, 41:7, 41:16, 48:9, 65:1, 68:2

**Saville** [1] - 61:8  
**SBU** [1] - 39:10  
**scheduling** [1] - 71:16  
**school** [1] - 55:14  
**School** [5] - 40:12, 55:12, 56:16, 67:18, 69:1  
**SCHUBERT** [2] - 5:7, 69:16  
**Schubert** [1] - 69:18  
**Scouts** [1] - 42:14  
**SCOUTS** [2] - 3:9, 42:12  
**season** [1] - 8:6  
**seating** [1] - 15:19  
**seats** [2] - 16:3, 17:7  
**second** [4] - 22:6, 27:14, 38:8, 64:15  
**Second** [1] - 35:12  
**second-hand** [1] - 22:6  
**secondhand** [1] - 22:15  
**secured** [1] - 49:8  
**security** [3] - 33:18, 33:19, 34:9  
**see** [4] - 13:9, 13:15, 45:17, 56:14  
**seeking** [2] - 17:11, 17:13  
**sell** [2] - 69:4, 69:19  
**Senior** [2] - 1:16, 6:11  
**sent** [3] - 72:18, 72:19, 73:2  
**September** [7] - 6:2, 6:10, 44:1, 45:11, 67:12, 68:12, 70:1  
**september** [1] - 1:18  
**served** [1] - 39:7  
**service** [3] - 8:8, 12:3, 12:14  
**ServSafe** [1] - 12:5  
**set** [3] - 33:2, 75:8, 75:10  
**seven** [5] - 15:17, 17:11, 24:12, 24:14, 41:17  
**several** [1] - 38:5  
**SEZ** [2] - 3:5, 39:13  
**Sez** [1] - 39:15  
**shape** [1] - 19:8  
**SHEET** [1] - 74:1  
**sheet** [2] - 74:3  
**Shepard** [3] - 59:2, 59:11, 60:7  
**Shop** [1] - 67:10  
**Shorthand** [1] - 75:14  
**show** [2] - 71:12, 71:13  
**Shulman** [1] - 43:18

**SHULMAN** [2] - 3:11, 43:16  
**Side** [1] - 39:3  
**sides** [1] - 20:10  
**sign** [2] - 36:2, 44:9  
**Sign** [1] - 74:3  
**signed** [1] - 41:9  
**signing** [1] - 44:4  
**simple** [1] - 31:19  
**sink** [1] - 16:4  
**sit** [6] - 29:7, 33:3, 35:13, 37:4, 37:5, 37:8  
**sits** [1] - 29:13  
**Slider** [1] - 53:11  
**SLIDER** [2] - 4:11, 53:9  
**SOCH** [2] - 59:2, 59:11  
**SOH** [1] - 59:19  
**sold** [1] - 47:17  
**sometimes** [2] - 35:9, 36:9  
**Sonesta** [7] - 27:6, 28:6, 29:2, 30:8, 32:4, 33:9, 34:9  
**sorry** [2] - 10:3, 35:8  
**sounds** [1] - 17:4  
**south** [1] - 45:13  
**space** [1] - 16:2  
**spaces** [1] - 16:4  
**Spanish** [1] - 17:2  
**special** [7] - 39:9, 44:15, 48:9, 48:16, 51:3, 58:1, 70:8  
**spell** [5] - 7:11, 16:7, 16:11, 19:2, 26:8  
**Spirits** [1] - 45:10  
**Square** [5] - 11:13, 43:5, 57:16, 71:5, 71:10  
**ss** [1] - 75:4  
**STAFF** [1] - 1:12  
**stand** [1] - 27:8  
**start** [3] - 26:6, 29:8, 37:5  
**started** [2] - 6:6, 32:11  
**State** [1] - 42:17  
**state** [5] - 7:11, 10:2, 16:7, 19:2, 26:5  
**statement(s)** [1] - 74:12  
**states** [3] - 28:5, 28:6, 28:14  
**Station** [1] - 38:3  
**stay** [2] - 12:11, 29:8

staying [1] - 40:19  
Steve [2] - 7:15, 48:17  
STEVEN [1] - 7:15  
still [2] - 48:4, 69:8  
stop [2] - 29:10, 37:8  
stopped [1] - 29:11  
store [4] - 7:4, 22:19, 23:2, 24:4  
story [1] - 16:2  
street [2] - 34:19, 35:12  
Street [33] - 9:15, 10:6, 18:18, 35:12, 35:13, 35:16, 37:4, 37:17, 38:1, 42:8, 45:14, 48:14, 48:15, 51:10, 53:2, 53:14, 54:6, 54:16, 56:3, 58:12, 59:2, 59:11, 61:17, 62:5, 63:5, 63:19, 64:5, 66:3, 67:1, 67:10, 69:5  
Student [3] - 59:1, 59:10, 68:10  
Students [1] - 70:18  
Studies [1] - 53:1  
stuff [1] - 8:7  
SUBLET [2] - 5:3, 67:6  
Sublet [2] - 67:4, 67:9  
submission [1] - 46:7  
submit [2] - 14:7, 55:4  
submitted [1] - 12:18  
subscribe [1] - 74:12  
substantially [1] - 24:6  
Sunday [11] - 7:7, 7:9, 40:14, 41:3, 41:4, 41:7, 41:16, 48:10, 64:4, 64:19, 65:2  
Sundays [2] - 7:19, 8:13  
support [1] - 38:12  
supposed [1] - 46:3  
Supreme [1] - 7:3  
SUPREME [2] - 2:3, 7:1  
suspension [1] - 46:18  
SWORN [1] - 26:2  
system [5] - 47:15, 50:18, 57:15, 58:10, 71:19  
Szeto [6] - 26:1, 28:4, 28:10, 28:17, 33:12, 34:2

T

table [1] - 55:4  
Taco [1] - 69:18

tastings [1] - 45:15  
taxi [9] - 29:6, 29:15, 31:18, 32:1, 33:3, 35:14, 37:11, 37:13  
TD [6] - 30:10, 32:7, 32:8, 32:9, 37:4, 37:19  
ten [2] - 11:13, 28:8  
terms [1] - 24:4  
THE [8] - 1:23, 2:8, 18:14, 26:8, 75:16, 75:17, 75:17, 75:18  
Theater [3] - 61:16, 71:5, 71:10  
therefor [1] - 74:2  
Third [3] - 35:16, 69:19  
THIS [1] - 75:16  
three [8] - 11:2, 19:19, 20:9, 20:10, 31:13, 31:14, 31:17  
TIME [1] - 1:19  
timely [2] - 43:6, 43:19  
Tip [2] - 27:10, 32:4  
TO [1] - 75:17  
together [1] - 45:19  
TOM [7] - 7:13, 7:19, 8:14, 22:9, 22:14, 24:1, 24:5  
Tom [2] - 7:13, 22:9  
tomorrow [1] - 13:15  
took [4] - 34:14, 34:17, 37:14, 62:14  
top [1] - 14:10  
Tour [1] - 48:8  
Town [1] - 48:12  
Tracy [1] - 11:1  
Traffic [1] - 48:17  
TRANSCRIPT [1] - 75:16  
transcript [3] - 74:2, 74:11, 74:12  
TRUCK [2] - 2:8, 18:14  
truck [6] - 19:15, 46:15, 47:3, 47:4, 47:6, 47:10  
Truck [2] - 18:17, 19:7  
trucks [3] - 48:12, 70:11  
true [1] - 75:9  
TRUST [2] - 3:16, 49:6  
Trust [1] - 49:8  
truth [1] - 31:11  
TULAGADABA [2] - 5:5, 68:7  
Tulagadaba [1] - 68:9  
Tuomaala [1] - 52:18

<p><b><u>TUOMAALA</u></b> [2] - 4:10, 52:16  <b><u>turned</u></b> [1] - 6:6  <b><u>tURNIP</u></b> [2] - 2:4, 9:10  <b><u>Turnip</u></b> [1] - 9:13  <b><u>two</u></b> [1] - 62:13  <b><u>typically</u></b> [1] - 32:3</p>	<p><b><u>wait</u></b> [1] - 67:7  <b><u>waiting</u></b> [1] - 8:6  <b><u>waiver</u></b> [2] - 43:6, 43:19  <b><u>walk</u></b> [1] - 16:5  <b><u>walk-in</u></b> [1] - 16:5  <b><u>Walker</u></b> [1] - 52:9  <b><u>WALSH</u></b> [3] - 4:14, 55:18, 63:1  <b><u>Walsh</u></b> [7] - 56:1, 56:9, 62:18, 63:3, 63:12, 63:17, 64:3  <b><u>warning</u></b> [2] - 44:2, 44:4  <b><u>Water</u></b> [1] - 70:7  <b><u>Watson</u></b> [1] - 10:5  <b><u>Weatherford</u></b> [1] - 66:1  <b><u>WEATHERFORD</u></b> [2] - 4:22, 65:18  <b><u>weddings</u></b> [1] - 19:11  <b><u>Wednesday</u></b> [1] - 6:10  <b><u>week</u></b> [6] - 15:18, 17:12, 24:13, 24:14, 41:5, 41:18  <b><u>weeks</u></b> [1] - 11:2  <b><u>WEI</u></b> [2] - 4:8, 51:15  <b><u>Wei</u></b> [1] - 51:17  <b><u>welcome</u></b> [3] - 56:2, 63:4, 63:13  <b><u>Weld</u></b> [1] - 63:14  <b><u>whatnot</u></b> [1] - 71:18  <b><u>WHEREOF</u></b> [1] - 75:10  <b><u>whole</u></b> [1] - 63:9  <b><u>WILKINSON</u></b> [1] - 7:15  <b><u>Wilkinson</u></b> [1] - 7:16  <b><u>WILLIAMS</u></b> [10] - 2:7, 18:13, 19:4, 19:10, 19:16, 20:4, 20:8, 20:14, 20:18, 21:16  <b><u>Williams</u></b> [3] - 18:16, 19:4, 19:7  <b><u>window</u></b> [1] - 30:1  <b><u>Windsor</u></b> [1] - 43:18  <b><u>WINE</u></b> [2] - 4:3, 49:18  <b><u>wine</u></b> [16] - 45:14, 50:3, 50:4, 50:16, 51:9, 51:17, 52:8, 52:18, 55:11, 56:1, 63:3, 63:12, 63:18, 64:4, 66:9, 66:18  <b><u>Wines</u></b> [1] - 7:2  <b><u>WINES</u></b> [2] - 2:3, 6:19  <b><u>Winthrop</u></b> [1] - 9:15  <b><u>WITH</u></b> [2] - 4:3, 49:18  <b><u>withdraw</u></b> [1] - 13:19  <b><u>withdrawn</u></b> [2] - 13:16, 40:16</p>
<u>U</u>	
<p><b><u>UNDER</u></b> [1] - 75:17  <b><u>under</u></b> [1] - 8:10  <b><u>Unit</u></b> [1] - 27:4  <b><u>UNLESS</u></b> [1] - 75:17  <b><u>up</u></b> [6] - 8:2, 12:11, 31:11, 32:12, 71:12, 71:13  <b><u>upheld</u></b> [1] - 38:17  <b><u>uphold</u></b> [2] - 25:19, 38:6  <b><u>usual</u></b> [1] - 42:1  <b><u>utility</u></b> [1] - 70:11</p>	
<u>V</u>	
<p><b><u>Valenzuela</u></b> [1] - 58:8  <b><u>VALENZUELA</u></b> [2] - 4:16, 58:5  <b><u>variance</u></b> [3] - 44:15, 48:9, 70:8  <b><u>Vassal</u></b> [1] - 61:8  <b><u>vend</u></b> [3] - 18:18, 19:16, 20:8  <b><u>vending</u></b> [1] - 19:17  <b><u>vendor/peddler</u></b> [3] - 18:17, 69:2, 69:19  <b><u>version</u></b> [1] - 34:7  <b><u>versions</u></b> [1] - 38:5  <b><u>VIC</u></b> [1] - 39:15  <b><u>victualler</u></b> [2] - 9:14, 15:16  <b><u>videotaped</u></b> [1] - 6:8  <b><u>violation</u></b> [8] - 28:19, 43:9, 44:2, 44:3, 44:7, 71:12, 71:14, 72:2  <b><u>Visa</u></b> [3] - 29:16, 32:17, 35:14  <b><u>vote</u></b> [13] - 9:4, 15:3, 18:3, 21:10, 25:7, 44:18, 45:19, 48:19, 49:13, 71:8, 72:1, 72:2  <b><u>voted</u></b> [6] - 44:2, 44:9, 46:18, 71:9, 71:12, 71:14</p>	
<u>W</u>	
<p><b><u>W-I-L-K-I-N-S-O-N</u></b> [1] - 7:16  <b><u>W-I-L-L-I-A-M-S</u></b> [1] - 19:5</p>	

WITHOUT [2] - 4:3, 49:18  
WITNESS [1] - 75:10  
woman [2] - 36:12, 38:7  
Wong [1] - 51:18  
words [1] - 11:6  
write [1] - 41:16  
www.reportersinc.com [1] - 1:23

Y

year [2] - 43:10, 69:11  
years [2] - 11:13, 19:19  
yummy [1] - 17:5

Z

Zach [1] - 65:19  
ZACH [2] - 4:22, 65:18  
Zecceo [2] - 67:4, 67:9  
ZECCEO [1] - 67:6  
ZECCO [1] - 5:3